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Lakeville, Connecticut 06039 

P R O F I L E  O F  T H E  C O R P O R A T I O N  

Salisbury Rancorp, Inc. is an independent, publicly-owned 
bariki ng and financial services company that becmie the bank 

holding company for Salisbury Bank and Trust Company on 
August 24, 1398. The Company’s sole subsidiary is Salisbury 

Bank and Trust Company (Salisbury Bank and Trust), which 

is chartered as a state bank and trust company by tlie State of 
Connecticur. Salisbury Bank and Trust Company was formed 

in 1925 by the nierger ofthe Salisbury Savings Society, founded 
in 1848, and the Robbins Burrall Trust, founded in 1874. 

A commercial bank with assets of $450,339,670 at 
December 31 , 2006, Salisbury Rank and’liust’s broad range of 
services includes an extensive array of deposit services, multiple 
mortgage products, and various other types of loans designed 

to meet the financial needs of its customers. The Hank also 

has a full-service Trust and Investment Services division which 
offers financial planning, trust and estate adrninistration, 

and investment management services. Salisbury Bank and 

Trust has six full-service banking offices located in Lakevillc, 

Salisbury, Sharon, and Canam,  Connecticut, and South 

Egremont and Shefficld, Massacliusctts, serving ciistoniers 
primarily from 1,itchfield County in Connecticut, nutchess 

and Colurtibia Chn t i e s  in New Yorlr, arid Berkshire County 
i n  Massachusetts. 

Salisbury Bancorp‘s shares are traded on the Americm Stock 

For more informLition, call LIS at 860-435-3801 or visit 
Exchange under the symbol “SAL.” 

C 0 N ‘I’ E N  T S 

Insid(> Front C,’ovt,r 
Mission Statcment 

The Board of Directors of Salisbury Dancorp, Inc. 
and Salisbury Rank and ’ l h t  Company 

Salisbury Dank and Trust Company Advisory Board 

I 
Profile of tlie Corporation 

2 
Message to Shareholders 

4 
Thc Bank in the Cotnmunity 

CY 

Selected Financial Data 

9 
Management’s Disciission aiid Analysis 

26 
Independent Auditors’ Report 

27 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

32 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

55 
Shareholder Information 

Ivisidt, Rack [,bW 
Officers of Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. 
and Salisbury Rank and Xust Company 

O N  T H E  C O V E R  

Stiles Meadow on a summer evening. It is named for Francis Stiles, an early settler who built a home in 1772 on 
the western edge of the meadow, in the hcart of Salisbury. Today thc land is owned by the Salisbury Association. 



E M P L O Y E E S  O F  T H E  Q U A R T E R  
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Erin Kiiisella Bccsy Uevino 

M E S S A G E  To S H A R E H O L D E R S  

2006 was a rewarding year for your Company. I am pleased to report 
continuing progress in our core business initiatives during the year. 
Spccifically, one initiative focused on ncw business development strategies 
to incrcasc commercial loan growth. A t  ycar cnd our commercial loan 
portfolio totaled nearly $90 million. This is an increase of $ 1  3,435,000 
or 17.90%. Overall net loans totaled $252,464,430 at December 31, 
2006 compared to $2 15,98c),149 at year end last year. Crcdit quality 
is constantly monitored to ensure that loan quality is not sacrificed for 
growth. As a result of thcsc cfforts, non-performing loans a t  year cnd 
totaled $963,902, which rcprcscnts only 0.38% of total loans outstanding. 

During 2006, the Trust and Investment Serviccs division teamed with 
Bradley, Foster and Sargcnt, Tnc., a Hartford based independent investment 
advisory firm. Their overriding investment philosophy is preservation of 
wealth by actively managing investment objectives that are established by 
their clicnts. This relationship allows us to offcr a broader scope of highly 
personalized professional investmcnt services and complements our new 
business development efforts. Tt also produced an increase in the number 
of client accounts as well as assets under management during 2006. This 
has resultcd in  an increase in trust and investment scrviccs revenues to 

$1,980,500, an incrcasc of $40c),lX9 or 26.04%. 

Our commitment to ncw product development and delivery remains a 
very iniportant piece of our core business initiatives as wc continue our 
efhrts to enhance ciistomer convcnicncc with products and services that 
meet their financial needs. During the year wc introduced Online Business 
Ranking, which provides cash management capabilities to our commercial 
customers. Escalating health insurance costs continue to challenge the 
business world today. Tn an effort to assist commercial customers in their 
ability to offer eniployee health insurance at a more reasonable cost, we 
now offcr Health Savings Accounts, specid tax-advantaged accounts 
designed to cover current and future medical expcnscs, for those covered 
by High Deductiblc Health Plans. This new account has become a very 
popular product in a short time. 

Net incomc for the year totaled $4,253,618 or $2.53 per average share 
outstanding. This is a dccrcase of $307,723 when compared to total 
income of $4,561,341 or $2.71 per avcragc share outstanding for the 
year 2005. A flat yield curve in early 2006 followed by a n  inverted yicld 
curve during thc second half of the year provided for a challenging 
carnings environment all year long. Income before tdxes, excluding incomc 
from net gains on salcs of available-for-sale securities and writedowns 
however, improved by $71 2,197 or 15.95?h in 2006 when compared to 
the corresponding period in 2005. Movement in the rmrkers limited the 
number of opportunities to generate gains on sales of securities during 
the year. Dividends declared for the year totaled $1.04 per common share 
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and represented an increase of 4% over the 
2005 dividcnds of $1 .OO per common share. 
This niarks the 24th consccutive year that the 
dividend has increased over the previous ycar. 
Historically, it‘s intcrcsting to note that the 
Bank has paid a dividend every quarter 
since 1967. 

As the banking market continues to 
consolidatc, I see this as an opportunity to 
strengthcn and grow our own market position 
which will enhance shareholder value. We 
announced in early Ocrobcr that the Bank 
had entered into a purchase and assumption 
agreement to acquire certain assets and 
liabilities of a small branch of New York Community Rank in New York 
State. The necessary state and federal regulatory approvals have been 
received, and we havc rcccntly filed an application to open a retail branch 
in nearby Dover Plains, New York. This is part of an ovcrall stratcgy to 
allow us to serve the long term best interest of all of our current and fiiture 
customers in the tri-state area, by operating as a n  indcpcndcnt community 
bank committed to providing quality service. 

The creativity, talent and determination of our management team as well 
as our loyal employees, lead me to feel very good about our future as an 
independent cotntnunity bank. Our pcoplc arc conimittcd to sci-ving 
our customers, our communities, and each other and iinderstand that 
establishing relationships built on trust is essential to crearing value today 
and into the future. 

I am sincerely grateful to the employees, officers, Advisory Board, and Board 
of Dircctors. You all continuc to contributc at a n  cxtraordinary Icvcl, and arc 
a major force in our success. Thank you for your support in 2006. Together 
we can continue to enhance shareholder value and fulfill our mission. 

Cordially, 

w John E l’erotti, 
Chairman nnd Chief Executive Oficer 

T H E  L E A D E R S H I P  T E A M  

Pictured from Le&: 

John E Foley 

ChiefFinancial OJJicer and Treasurer, 
Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. 

nnd Salisbury Bank and Trust Company 

John E l’erotti 

Chairman and Chief Executive Oficer, 
Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. 

and Salisbu y Rank and Trust Chmpany 

Richard J. Cantele, Jr. 

President and Chef Operating Oficec 
Salisbury Bancorp, IHC. 

and Salisbuly Rank and Trust Company 
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It's difficult to remain anonymous in a small town for very long. We 

all know and depend on each other. The relationships we form with 

neighbors and friends and with the natural wonders of our magnificent 

landscape itself are the very warp and weft of life here. 

A strong local bank is the thread that helps build a community, and 

Salisbury Bank and Trust's role as a critical element in the continued 

vitality of the communities it serves is ar the core of our mission. With 

all of the banking choices available today, everyone at Salisbury Bank 

and Trust is committed to esrablishing those personal connections 

with customers thar make them want to do business here and nowhere 

else. That personal touch, coupled with a range of innovative financial 

products and services, is a powerful comb nation. 

Salisbury Bank and Trusr is where ful -time and part-time residents 

look for a home mortgage, where business owners come for the financial 

services that can help them succeed, and where people of all ages turn 

for professional assistance in building financial security, now and for 

the future. The solid relationships that Salisbury Bank and Trust has 

established with our customers and the community are the keys to ou 

continued growth and to building shareholder value. 



Betsy A. Summerville 
Senior Vice President, Retail Banking 

R E ' I ' A l l ,  A N D  B U S I N E S S  B A N K I N G  

People choose to bank a t  Salisbury Bank and Trust for many reasons 

and a t  many srages of life. Local children learn the importance of saving 

through Salisbury Bank and Trust's School Savings Program. Their parents 

need a bank that takes the time to get to know them as individuals and has 
solutions for the many financial issues that arise over the 

years, and their grandparents need a bank that can help 
make their retirement cvcrything they want it to bc. 

At Salisbury Bank and Trust the development of ncw 

banking products to serve thc changing needs of both our 

retail and business customers is an ongoing process. Our 

expert management staff works to design individualized 
financial solutions for our customers. 

The popularity of online banking continues to grow 
at our Bank. Every week more customers choose the 

conveniencc of paying bills, verifying account balances and 
transferring funds a t  whatever time suits their schedules, 
24-hours a day. Salisbury Rank and Trust VISA customers 

also appreciatc being able to view their account histories 

and pay thcir bills online. 
Business customers have a number of new products 

from which to choose, including sophisticated cash 

managcrnent solutions. Online Business Banking offers 

business owners the option of designating which employees 

are authorized to vicw accounts and make transfers and 
payments. Businesses can also sct up automatic payment 

for recurring expenses, such as a cleaning service or 

landscape maintenance. Automated Clearing House 
(ACH) services allow cmployers to handle payroll through 

electronic direct deposit into employees' acwunts in any 

bank, even if a business has only a few workers. Our 

business debit card can be issued in the name ofany authorized employee, 

with set dollar or daily limits for each. 

O n e  particularly successful new product is our Health Savings 

Account (HSA), which enables individuals and businesses co exert some 

control over the escalating cost of health insurance. Individuals and 

employers who opt for lower cost, high-deductible insurance plans can 

set money aside in an HSA to pay for future medical expenses and gain a 

tax advantage as well. All contributions to an HSA are tax deductible and 

interest earned and withdrawals made to pay for qualified health expenses 

are tax frec. While HSAs have proven very popular with the self-employed 
and others who pay for their own health coverage, it is employers who have 

embraced the concept of HSAs with real enrhusiasm. 



Geoffrey A. ‘lhlcott 
Senior Vice President and ChiLfLending O@cer .. 

C O N S U M E R  A N D  C O M M E R C I A L  L E N D I N G  

Whatever our customers have in mind, whether it’s buying a home or 

starting or growing a busincss, Salisbury Bank and Trust‘s lending officers 

can offer sound advice and an extraordinary range of lending oprions to 

answer their nccds. 
Salisbury Bank and Trust is one of thc area‘s leaders in originating 

residcnrial mortgages through our SB‘I’ Mortgage Division. Our 

experienced SDT Mortgage Makers havc forged strong working 
relationships with leading realtors arid attorneys in  the 

tri-state region, equaled only by the close connections they 

form with their customers as they make it possible for 

them to purchase the home they want. With a wealth of 

mortgage options at their fingertips, our Mortgage Malrers 

can custom design a mortgage to meet each customer’s 

sitlicition, whcthcr they’re buying a starter home, building a 
new home or have their eyc on a large estate. 

Whether thc Bank holds the mortgage for its own 

portfolio or sells it on thc secondary market, the SET 
Mortgage Malrers walk the ciiscomer through the process 
from start to finish and beyond. It’s the little things 

that the Mortgage Mdkers do, such as arranging an 
appointment for evenings or weekends and to getting 

ciistomers an answer quickly, that sct them apart. 

Our  business lendcrs‘ unusual breadth of cxperience 

enables them to quickly assess and respond to a varicty of 
situations. Their first order of business is to get to know 

thcir customers, to undcrstand their busincss, and show 

them what Salisbury Banlr and Trust can do to make their 
plans a reality. Our seasoiicd business lending professionals 

have the flexihility to ger the job donc and get it done fast. 

It’T a high touch husincss, and the one-to-one 
rclationships that our commercial lenders form with thcir 

customers frequently conciriiie over the course of years 

a s  the business evolves, evcn extending into the next 

generation. Wc care what our customers thinlc of us, and the fact that 
niaiiy of them consider Salisbury Bank and Trust a key player in their 
husiness S U C C ~ S S  shows how highly thcy value their relationships with us. 

111 add; tiori to commcrcial real estate niortgages, business lines of 
crcdit, and term and installment loans, Salisbury Bank atid Trust offers 

business owners a wealth of other lending products, including construction 
mortgages, equipment leasing and check loan overdraft protection. 



T H U S ' I '  A N D  l N V E S T M E N T  S E R V I C E S  

Relationships are the hallmark of SB'I' Trust and Investment Services. 

Our guiding principle is long-term growth achieved on an individual 

hasis for every client in xcordance with each clicnt's goals, needs, and 

investment philosophy. It's a way of doing business that has proved to be 
good business, with SBT Trust and lnvestment Scrviccs 

having grown to more than $325 million in assets under 

management. 

Trust services are generational in  nature, with 
grandparents or pdrents nialcing arrangcmcnts to provide 

for the ongoing financial sccurity of their dependents and 

heirs. 
It is also inherently personal as our trust officers are 

duty bound to sec that the terms of the trust are carried 

out. Part of that is seeing to purcly financial concerns, 

but at SB1' 'li-ust and Investment Services 'in important 

part of our work is being a rcliablc friend. Ir can mean 

paying rcgular personal visits to clients at their homes or 
in long-term care Gkilities. It can mean helping to sort 
mail or seeing that Iiome repairs are taken care of or simply 

being there to listen to any coiicern our client has. In our 

increasingly mobile society, with hmily members often 

thousands of niiles away, it is often a trust officer who 

mswers a call for assistance or reassurance. That's what sets 

SRT Trust and Investment Services apart from the rest. 
During 2006, SBT Invcstmenr Services entered into 

a unique arrangcrncnt with 

management firm, Bradley, Foster & Sargent, lnc. (BFS), 
to offer our clients access to extraordinary investment 

experience and rcsources. Firms of BFSb caliber, with 

assets under management in cxcess of $1 billion, typically 
concentrate on largc institutional clients. Thcir focus, however, has 

always been personal investment management for individuals, families, 
entrepreneurs, professionals, non-profits, and smaller institutions. 

leading Hartford invcstnient 

With a similar investment philosophy, our relationship with BFS 
is of incstirnable benefit to our smaller clients as well as thosc with large 

portfolios. While BFS typically works exclusively with clients having a 
minimum of $ 1  million to invest, Salisbury Rank and Trust clients with 
a minimum of $200,000 can have the same access to the skill, expcrierice 
and research capabilities that has made BFS a leader in its field. 

Diane E. R. Johnstone 
Senior Vzce President and Trust Oficer 



SELECTED FJNANCJAL DATA 
SELECTED CONSOLDATED FINANCJAL AND OTHER DATA OF THE COMPANY 

At or For the Years Ended December 31 
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

(dollars in thousunds except per share datu) 

Statement o f  Condition Data: 

Loans, Nct 
Allowance For Loan Losses 
Jnveslments 
Total Assets 
Deposits 
Borrowings 
Shareholders' Equity 
Nonperfonning Assets 

Statement of Income Data: 

Interest and Fees on Loans 
Interest and Dividends on Securities 

Interest Expense 
Net Tntercst and Dividend Income 
(Benefit) Provision for Loan Losses 
Trust Department Income 
Other Income 
Net Gain on Sales of Securities 
Other Expenses 

and Other Interest h o m e  

Pre Tax Jncomc 
Income Taxes 

Net Income 

Per Sharc Data: 

Earnings pcr common share 
Earnings pcr common share, assuming dilution 
Cash Dividends Ijcclarcd per share 
Book Value (at year end) 

Selccted Statistical Data: 

Return on Average Assets 
Kcturn on Average Shareholders' Equity 
Dividend Payout Ratio 
Average Shareholders' Equity lo Average Assets 
Net Intercst Spread 
Net Interest Margin 

$252,464 
2,474 

161,231 
450,340 
313,586 

87,093 
44,349 

963 

$21 5,989 
2,626 

151,168 
402,922 
287,27 1 
71,016 
4 1,442 

773 

$20 1,978 
2,5 12 

184,286 
423,101 
298,842 
79,2 1 3 
40,700 

2,267 

$139,563 
1,664 

147,02 1 
311,100 
218,457 
60,897 
28,850 

685 

$135,632 
1,458 

138,435 
293,107 
211,037 

51,891 
27,345 

1,400 

$15,687 $13,320 $9,592 $9,226 $9,677 

8,043 
10,459 
13,271 

1,981 
2,085 

517 
12,245 

(87) 

7,496 
7,352 

13,464 
210 

1,571 
2,084 

12,444 
1,210 

6,959 6,423 
5,659 5,613 

10,892 10,036 
250 313 

1,854 1,674 
1,490 1,058 

I ,41 I 1,252 

10,603 8,599 

6,48 1 
6,898 
9,260 

300 
1,100 
1,388 

634 
7,775 

5,696 5,675 4,794 5,108 4,307 
1,442 1,114 775 1,268 1,108 

$4,254 $4,561 $4,010 $3,840 $3,199 

$2.53 $2.71 $2.67 $2.70 $2.25 
$2.53 $2.71 $2.67 $2.70 $2.25 
$1 -04 $1 .OO $0.96 $0.92 $0.88 

$26.33 $24.61 $24.19 $20.26 $19.21 

1.02% 1.12% 1.14% 1.24% 1.13% 
9.83% 10.81% 12.34?4 13.47% 12.63% 

41.11% 36.90% 35.96% 34.07% 39.1 1% 
10.37% 10.38% 9.20% 9.2 1 "/o 8.92% 
2.93% 3.35% 3.22% 3.37% 3.21% 
3*67% 3.89% 3.63% 3.80% 3.80% 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSTS 
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION 

Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. 
and Subsidiary 

The following provides Management’s comments on the financial condition and results of operations of Salisbury 
Bancorp, lnc. (thc “Company”), a Connecticut corporation, which is the holding company for Salisbury Bank and 
Trust Company, (the “Bank”). The Company’s sole subsidiary is the Bank, which has six (6) full service offices 
located in thc towns of North Canaan, Lakevillc, Salisbury and Sharon, Connecticut and South Egremont and 
Sheffield, Massachusetts, and a Trust and Investment Services Division locatcd in Lakeville, Connecticut. The 
Company and the Bank were formed in 1998 and 1848, respectively. In order to provide a foundation for building 
shareholder value and scrvicing customers, the Company remains committed to investing in the technological and 
human resources necessary to developing new personalized tinancial products and services in order to better serve 
both current and future customers in the tr-statc area. On October 3, 2006, the Bank announced that it had cntcred 
into a purchase and assumption agreement to acquire certain assets and liabilities of a small branch of New York 
Community Bank in Mount Vernon, Ncw York. The acquisition reccivcd state and federal regulatory approvals and 
makcs it possible for the Company and the Bank to establish additional offices in New York Statc subject to 
regulatory approvals. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements and the notes to thc consolidated financial statements that are presented as part of this Annual 
Report. 

RESULTS OF OPERATION 
Comparison ofthe Years Ended December 31,2006 and 2005 

Overview 

The reportcd earnings for the Company totaled $4,254,000 in 2006, a decrease of $307,000 or 6.73% over year 2005 
earnings of $4,561,000. Earnings per average share outstanding totalcd $2.53 in 2006. This compares to carnings per 
average share outstanding of $2.71 in 2005 and $2.67 in 2004. The decrease in earnings pcr share is primarily 
attributablc to an increase in interest expense due to a higher level of deposits and to a decrcasc in noninterest 
income; specifically, rcduced income from gains in securities transactions when comparing the two periods. The 
Company’s gains on salc of available-for-sale securities amounted to $5 17,000 in 2006 compared to $1,210,000 for 
the year 2005. Total nonintcrcst expense for the period ending December 31, 2006 totaled $12,245,000. This is a 
dccrcase of $199,000 or 1.60% when comparing the corresponding period in 2005. This decrcasc is primarily the 
result of management’s continuing cfforts to control operating expenses. 

The Company’s assets at Deccmbcr 3 1, 2006 totaled $450,340,000 compared to total assets of $402,922,000 at 
December 3 1 ~ 2005. Ncw business development efforts have resulted in the growth of net loans outstanding which 
totaled $252,464,000 at Dcccmbcr 31, 2006. This compares to net loans outstanding of $215,989,000 at December 
3 1,2005 and represents an increase of $36,475,000 or 16.89%. This growth was funded by an increase in deposits as 
well as an incrcasc in advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston. Deposits at December 31, 2006 
totaled $3 13,586,000 and comparcd to total deposits of $287,271,000 at December 31, 2005. Approximately $19.5 
million of this growth is the result of. thc Bank’s decision to begin using brokered deposits as part of a growth 
stralcgy. The remaining growth is primarily the result of the Company’s new business development plan. Advances 
from the Federal Home Loan Bank totaled $X7,093,000 at December 3 1, 2006 which comparcd to advances totaling 
$71,016,000 at December 31, 2005. Thc Bank continues to monitor the quality of the loan portfolio to cnsure that 
loan quality will not bc sacrificed for growth or otherwise compromise the Company’s objcctivcs. Nonperforming 
loans totaled $963,000 at Dcccmbcr 31, 2006 as compared to nonperforming loans totaling $773,000 at December 
31, 2005. This represents an increase of $190,000 or 24.580/, but is not considered to be indicative of any trend as 
thc lcvcl ofnon-performing loans remains less than one-half of one percent ( 1  %) of total loans. 

The Company is “well capitalized”. The Company’s risk-based capital ratios at December 3 1, 2006, which includes 
the risk-weighted assets and capital of the Bank, were 14.28% for Tier 1 capital and 15.28% for lotal capital. The 
Company’s leverage ratio was 8.43% at December 3 1, 2006. This comparcs to a Tier 1 capital ratio at December 
31, 2005 of 14.58%, a total capital ratio of 15.76% and a Company leverage ratio of 8.27%. As a result of the 
Company’s tinancia1 performance, the Board of Directors increased total dividcnds declared on the Company’s 
common stock to $1.04 per share in 2006. This compares to a $1 .00 per share dividend declared in 2005 and a $96 
per share dividend that was declared in 2004. 
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Critical Accounting Estimates 

In preparing the Company’s financial statements, management selects and applies numerous accounting policies. In 
applying these policies, management must make estimates and assumptions. The accounting policy that is most 
susceptible to critical estimates and assumptions is the allowance for loan losses. The determination of an 
appropriate provision is bascd on a determination of the probable amount of credit losses in the loan portfolio. 
Many factors influence the amount of future loan losses, relating to both the specific characteristics of the loan 
portfolio and general economic conditions nationally and locally. While management carcfiilly considers thcsc 
factors in determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses, future ad-justmcnts may be necessary due to 
changcd conditions, which could have an advcrsc impact on reported earnings in the future. (Scc “Provisions and 
Allowance for Loan Losscs”.) 

Net Intcrest and Dividend lncome 

The Company earns income from two basic sources. The primary source is through the management of its financial 
assets and liabilities and involves functioning as a financial intermediary. The Company accepts funds from 
depositors and borrows funds and either lends the funds to borrowers or invests those funds in various types of 
securities. The second source is fee income, which is discussed in the noninterest income section ofthis analysis. 

Net interest income is the difference between the interest and fees earned on loans, interest and dividcnds earned on 
securities (the Company’s earning assctsj and the intercst cxpense paid on deposits and borrowed funds, primarily in 
thc form of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The amount by which interest income will cxcced interest 
cxpense depends on two factors: (I j tlic volume or balance of earning assets compared to the volumc or balance of 
interest-bearing deposits and borrowed funds and (2 j the interest ratc earned on those interest-earning assets 
comparcd with the interest rate paid on those interest-bearing deposits and borrowed I‘unds. For this discussion, net 
intcrcst income is presented on a fully taxable-equivalent (“FTE”) basis. FTE interest income restatcs reported 
interest income on tax exempt loans and securities as if such interest were taxed at the applicable State and Federal 
income tax rates for all periods presented. 

(dollars in thousands) 

Interest and Dividend Income 
(financial statements) 

Tax Equivalent Adjustment 
Total Interest and Dividend 
Income (on an FTE basis) 

December 3 1, 
2006 2005 2004 

$23,730 $20,816 $16,551 

1.072 1,200 l,lx2 

24,802 22,016 17,733 

Tntcrest Expense (10,459) (7,352) (5,659) 

Nct Interest and Dividend Income-FTE u&3!43 $14- jd2,074 

Thc Company’s 2006 total interest and dividend incoinc on an FTE basis for the period ended December 3 1, 2006 
increased $2,786,000 or 12.65% whcn compared to tlic same period in 2005. The increase is priinarily attributable to 
an increase in earning assets as well an economic environment experiencing an increase in interest rates. 

Interest expense on deposits in 2006 increased $2,715,000 or 65.09% to $6,886,000 compared to $4,171,000 for the 
corresponding period in 2005 and $2,739,000 in 2004. Thc increase is primarily attributable to an increase in 
deposits as well as an interest rate environment that was on the rise for most of the year as a rcsult of Federal 
Rcscrve actions. Intcrcst expense for Fcderal Home Loan Bank advances incrcitsed $392,000 to $3,573,000 in 2006 
coinparcd to $3,181,000 in 2005 and $2,920,000 in 2004. The increase was primarily the rcsult of an increase in 
advanccs during the year. Competition remains aggrcssivc and interest margins continue to be pressured. As it 
result, net interest and dividend incoinc on an FTE basis decreased $321,000 or 2.19% over 2005 and totalcd 
$14,343,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and compared to net interest and dividend income on an FTE 
basis of$14,664,000 for the year ended Dcccmber 3 1,2005 and $1 2,074,000 for the year ended 2004. 

I 



Net interest margin is net interest and dividend income cxprcsscd as a percentage of average earning assets. It is 
used to measure the difference between the average rate 01’ intcrcst and dividends earned on assets and the average 
rate of interest that must be paid to support those asscts. To maintain its net interest margin, the Company must 
manage thc relationship between interest earned and paid. The Company’s 2006 net intcrcst margin on an FTE basis 
was 3.67%. This compares to a net interest margin of 3.89% for 2005. The following table reflects average balances, 
interest earned or paid and rates for the three years ended Oecember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The avcragc loan 
balances include both non-accrual and restructured loans. lnterest earned on loans also includes fees on loans such 
as latc charges that are not deemed to be material. Interest earned on tax cxcmpt securities in the table is presented 
on a fully taxable-cquivalcnt basis (“FTF?’). A federal tax rate of 34% was used in perfoming these calculalions. 
Actual tax cxcmpt income earned in 2006 was $2,080,000 with a yield of4.41%. Actual tax cxcinpt income in 2005 
totaled $2,329,000 with a yield of 4.44% and in 2004 actual tax exempt income was $2,294,000 with a yicld of 
4.68%. 



YIELD ANALYSIS 

Averagc Balances, lntercst EarnedlPaid and Rates 
Years Ended Dcccmber 3 1 

(dollars in thousands) 
INTEREST INTEREST INTER EST 

AVERAGE EARNED/ YIICLD AVbRAGE EARNED/ YIELD AVEMGE EARNED/ YIELD 
RATE BALANCE PAID M T E  BALANCE PAID RATE BALANCE PAID 

ASSETS 
Interest-Earning Assets: 
Loans 
Taxable Securities 
Tax-Exempt Securities* 
Federal Funds 
Other Intcrcst-Earning 
Total Intercst-Earning 

Allowance for Loan 

Cash & Duc From 

Prcrnises, Equipment 
Net unrealized loss 

on AFS Securitics 
Other Assets 
Total Average Assets 

Assets 

Losses 

Banks 

LIABILITIES AND 
SHARE1 IOLDERS' 
EQUITY 
Interest-Bearing 

NOW/Moncy Market 

Savings Deposits 
Time Dcposits 
Borrowed Funds 
Total Interest-Bcaring 

Demand Deposits 
Other Liabilitics 
Shareholders' Equity 
Total Liabilitics and 

Liabilitics: 

Deposits 

Liabilities 

Shareholders' Equity 

Net Interest Income 

Net Interest Spread 
Net Interest Margin 

$229,704 $15,687 6.83% $208,786 $13,320 6.38% $160,382 $9,592 5.9X%1 

$111,635 $5,883 5.27% $ I  12,746 $5,097 4.52% $ I  17,535 $4,6 I 3 3.92% 

$47,215 $3,152 6.68% $52,435 $3,529 6.73% $49,017 $3,475 7.09% 
$1,154 $56 4.85u/o $1,840 $48 2.61% $3,455 $39 1.13% 

$14 0.77% $703 $24 3.41% $1,096 $22 2.01% $1,809 

$390,411 $24,802 6.35% $376,903 $22,016 5.84% $332, I9X $17,733 5.34% 

($2,603) 

$6,949 
$6,388 

($4,106) 
320.348 

$4 17,387 

($2,652) 

$8,189 
$6,432 

($2,127) 
$ I9,707 

$406.452 

$79,356 $1,812 2.28%) $81,602 
$48,882 $640 1.31% $59,466 

$1 06,395 $4,434 4.17% $X6,794 

($1,952) 

$7,987 
$3,865 

($412) 
5 12.330 

$354,016 

$1,229 1.51% $62,681 $382 0.61% 

$2,486 2.86% $75,241 $1,984 2.64% 
$456 0.77% $54,596 $373 0.68% 

$71,471 $3,573 5.00% $67,793 $3,181 4.69% $74,954 $2,920 3.90% 

$10,459 3.42% $295,655 $7,352 2.49% $267,472 $5,659 2.12% $306,104 
$65,151 $65,591 $5 1,649 

$2,842 $3,008 $2,329 
$43,290 $42,198 $32,566 

$417,387 $406,452 $354,016 
4L" 

$14,343 $14,664 $12,074 

2.93% 3.35% 3.22% 
3.67% 3.89% 3.63% 

* Presentcd on a fully taxable equivalent ("FTE") basis 
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Volume and Rate Variance Analysis of Net Intcrest and Dividend Income 
(Taxable equivalent basis) 

(‘dollurs in thousnnds) 2006 over 2005 2005 over 2004 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Interest and dividend income on: 

Volume Rate Total Volume Rote T&d 

Loans $ 1,335 !$ 1,032 $’ 2,367 $ 2,895 $ 833 $ 3,728 
Tax;ible investtncnt securities 150) 836 786 (188) 672 484 
Tax-exempt invcstment securities (351) 126) 242 (188) 54 1377) 

17 
Total interest and dividend income $ 908 $ 1,878 %2;786 $ 2,926 $ 1,357 $4,283 

10 (23) 40 Other interest earning (26)- 36 

Interest expense on: 
NOW/MonieyMarkctdeposits $ (34) !$ 617 !$ 583 $ 115 $ 732 $ 847 

265 184 33 50 83 
Time deposits 561 

172 220 392 (279) 540 26 1 norrowed liinds 
Total interest cxpciise $ 618 % 2,489 !$ 3,107 $ 174 $1,519 $ 1,693 

Net interest and dividend income $ (61u $13211 $ 2 a  & ( 1 6 a  =m 

1,387 1,948 305 197 502 
Savings deposits (81) 

--- 

Nonintercst Income 

Nonintcrest incorrie tolalcd $4,583,000 lor the year endcd ncceiilber 31, 2006 and compared to $4,865,000 for the 
ye:ir endcd December ’41, 2005. ‘l’hs is a dccrease of $282,000 or 5.80%. Gains on salcs of availablc-lor-sale 
securities dccrcascd $693,000 or 57.27%. ‘This decrease is priiiiarily the result of movement in market rates during 
the year. The yield curve remained flat :md at times was inverted during tlie year whch limited opportunities to 
generate g:iins o n  salcs of available-lbr-sale secnritics. Trust and investment services income increased $4 10,000 to 
$1,981,000 primarily as :I result o1 the efforts of new busiiiess dcvclopmerit. Service charges on deposit :iccounts 
totaled $707,000 li)r 2006. ‘ l h s  is an increiise of $65,000 or 10.12%~ when cornpard to total service charges of 
$642,000 in 2005 The increase can he attributed to an increase in the number of deposit :iccounts. Mortgage 
refinancing reimined active during 2006. Competition i t i  the secondary mortgage market continues to he very 
aggressive. Other income has reiixiineed rcl:dvely consistcnt when cornparing the year 2006 io 2005. ‘lhs catcgory 
of income priinarily consists of fees associated with tramaction accounts and in addition, lkcs related to the 
origimition and servicing of mortgage lams as well as p i n s  reflecting the sale of mortgage loans. 

Noninterest Expensc 

Overall, noninterest expense decreased 1.60% Ibr the year cndcd December 71, 2006 as coinpired to tlie 
corresponding period in 2005. Professior~il fees however, iiicreascd $248,000 or 80.78%. The Company’s trust and 
investment services division teanicd with Bradley Foster and Sargent, Inc, an indeperidcnt investment advisory firm 
whch assists in providmg a broader scope of highly pcrsordized prolcssioml iwestincnt services to clients. In 
addition, there were several projects that required the services of consultants during the year tlltlt infliicnccd the 
increase in prolcssional fees. Other incrmses in nonintcrcst expenses are :attributable to noriiul volumes of busincss. 
The dccreiises in the nonintcrcst expenses listed in the table below are all primarily attributable to manageinent’s 
continuing efforts to control operating expenses. 



The components of noninterest expense and the changes in thc period wcrc as follows (amounts in thousands): 

2006 2005 $Change %,Change 
Salaries and employee benefits 9; 7,151 $ 7,355 $(204) (2.77)X 
Occupancy expense 752 728 24 3.30 
Equipmcnt expense 787 777 10 1.29 
Data processing 1,134 1,014 120 1 I .83 
In suriin cc 154 148 6 4.05 
Printing and stationery 240 27X (3X) (13.67) 
Professional fccs 555 307 24X 80.7X 
Legal expense 151 264 (1 13) (42.X0) 

Other expense 1,157 1,409 (252) (17.89) 
Total noninterest expense $12.245 $12.444 $(199) (1.60) 

Amortization of core deposit intangible 164 164 0 * 00 

Income Taxes 

In 2006, the Company’s income tax provision totaled $1,442,000 that reflects an effective tax rate of 25.32%. This 
compares to an income tax provision oE$1,114,000 and an el‘l‘ective tax rate ol‘ 19.63‘% for the same period in 2005. 
This increase is primarily attributable to an increase in taxable income. 

Nut Incumc 

Overall, net income totaled $4,254,000 lor tlic year cndcd Dcccmbcr 31, 2006. This coniparcs to net income 01‘ 
$4,561,000 for lhc year cndcd December 3 1,2005. This is a decrease of $307,000 or 6.73% and represents earnings 
per average share outstanding of $2.53. Earnings per average share outstanding for the year ended December 31, 
2005 was $2.71. 

HP:SIJI,‘I’S Ob’ OPEIWI’ION 
Comparison of the Yews Ended December 31,2005 and 2004 

Overview 

The earnings for the Company were $4,561,000 in 2005, :in incrcrisc of $542,000 or 13.49% over year 2004 earnings 
of $4,019,000. Earnings per average share outstanding were $2.71 in 2005. This compared to earnings per average 
share outstanding of $2.67 in 2004 and $2.70 in 2003. The increase in earnings per share was priinarily the result of‘ 
the increased base of earnings assets following consummation ol‘ the Company’s acquisition ol‘ Canaan National 
Rancorp, Inc. on September 10,2004. 

The Company’s assets at Dcccmbcr 31, 2005 were $402,922,000 compared to total assets of $423,101,000 at 
Dcccmbcr 31, 2004. The decrease was primarily attributable to a reduction in the securities portfolio. During the 
year 2005, net loans outstanding increased $14,011,000 or 6.94?4 and total $215,989,000. This compared to net 
loans outstanding of $201,978,000 at Ilecember 31, 2004. The Bank monitored the quality of the loan portlolio to 
cnsiirc that loan quality WBS not sacrificed for growth or otherwise conipromised the Company’s objectives. 
Nonpcrf’orming loans were $773,000 at December 3 1, 2005 as compared to nonperforniing loans of $2,267,000 at 
December 31, 2004. This was a dccrcasc nl‘ $1,494,000 or 65.90%. Deposits at December 31, 2005 were 
$287,271,000 compared to total deposits of $298,842,000 at December 3 1, 2004, representing a decrease of 
% I  1,571,000. 

The Hank was “well capitalized”. The Company’s risk-bascd capital ratios at Dcceinber 3 I ,  2005, which included 
the risk-weighted assets and capital of the Salisbury Bank and Trust Company, were 14.58% for Tier 1 capital and 
15.76% for total capital. The Company’s leverage ratio was 8.27% at Dcccmber 31, 2005. This compared to a Tier 
1 capital ratio at December 31, 2004 of 11.12%, a total capital ratio of 12.13% and a Company leverage ratio of 
7.22%. As a result of the Company’s haiicial pcrformancc, the Board of Directors increased total dividends 
dcclared on the Company’s common stock to $1 .OO per share in 2005. This compared to a $96 per share dividcnd 
declared in 2004 and a $.92 per share dividend that was declared in 2003. 



Nct Tnterest and Dividend lncome 

For this discussion, net inlerest income is presented on a fully taxable-cquivalent (“FTE”) basis. FTE interest 
income restates reported interest income on tax cxeinpt loans and securities as if such interest were taxed at the 
applicable State and Federal income tax rates for all periods presented. 

(dollc~rs in thousands) 

lntercst and Ilividcnd Income 
(financial statcmcnts) 

December 3 1 ,  
2005 2004 2003 

$20,816 $16,551 $15,650 

Tax Equivalent Adjustment l,zoo 1,182 1,075 
Total Interest and Dividend 
lncornc (on an FTE basis) 22,016 17,733 16,725 

lntercsl Expense 17,352) (5,659) 15,613) 

Net lntercst and Dividend Income-FTE $14.664 $12,Q24 $11.112 

The Company’s 2005 total intcrcst and dividend income on an FTE basis of$22,016,000 was $4,283,000 or 24.15% 
more than the total interest and dividend on an FTE basis of $17,733,000 in 2004. The increase was primarily 
attributable to an increase in earning assets as wcll an economic environment experiencing a slow increase in 
interest rates. 

lntercst expensc on deposits in 2005 increased $1,432,000 or 52.28% to $4,171,000 coinparcd to $2,739,000 for thc 
corresponding period in 2004 and $2,866,000 in 2003. Interest expense for Federal Home Loan Bank advances 
increased $261,000 to $3,181,000 in 2005 compared to $2,020,000 in 2004 and $2,747,000 in 2003. The increase 
was primarily the result of an increase in advances during the year. Although competition reinaincd aggressivc and 
intcrest margins continued to be prcssured, net interest and dividend income on an FTE basis increased $2,590,000 
or 2 I .45% over 2004 and totaled $14,664,000 at December 3 1, 2005 compared to net interest and dividend income 
on an FTH basis of $12,074,000 at Dccciber 3 I ,  2004 and $1 1,112,000 in 2003. 

The Coiiipany’s 2005 nct interest mitrgin on an FTE basis was 3.89%. This compared to a net interest margin of 
3.63% Tor 2004. Actual tax cxeinpt income in 2005 was $2,320,000 with a yield of 4.44%. Actual tax cxenipt 
income in 2004 totaled $2,294,000 with a yield of 4.68% and in 2003 actual tax exempt income was $2,086,000 
with a yield 01’4.78%. 

1 
I 
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YIELD ANALYSIS 

Average Balances, Interest EarnedlPaid and Rates 

(dollars in thousands) 

ASSETS 
Interest-Earning Assets: 
Loans 
Taxable Sccurities 
Tax-Exempl Securities" 
Fedem1 Funds 
Other Intercst-Earning 
Total Interest-Earning 

Allowance Tor Loan 

Cash & Due From 

Prerniscs, Equipmcnt 

Assets 

Losses 

Banks 

Ycars Ended Deccmber 3 1 

2005 2004 2003 
INTEREST WThREST INTEREST 

AVERAGE EARNED/ YIELD AVERAGE EARNED/ YIELD AVERAGE EARNED/ YIELD 
BA I ,ANCE PAID KATE BALANCE PAID RATE BALANCE PAID RATE 

$208,786 $13,320 6.38% $160,382 $9,592 5.98% $142,752 $9,226 6.46% 
$1 12,746 $5,097 4.52% $1 17,535 $4,613 3.92% $101,931 $4,299 4.22% 
$52,435 $3,529 6.73% $49,0 I7 $3,475 7.09% $43,603 $3,161 7.25% 

$29 0.93% $1,840 $48 2.61%1 $3,455 $39 1.13%) $3,125 
$1,096 $22 2.01u/o $1,809 $14 0.77% $1,359 $10 0.74% 

$376,903 $22,016 5.84% $332,198 $17,733 5.34% $292,770 $16,725 5.71% 

($2,652) ($1,952) ($ 1,468) 

$8,189 
$6,432 

Net unrealized (lossjgain 
on AFS Securitics ($2,127) 

Othcr Assets $19,707 

Total Averagc Assets $406,452 

LIABILITIES AND 
SHARhHOIDERS' 
EQUrTY 
Interest- Bearing 

NOW/Moncy Market 

Savings Deposits 
Tinic Deposits 
Borrowcd Funds 
Total Intercst-Bearing 

Demand Dcposits 
Othcr Liabilities 
Sharreholdcrs' Equity 
Total Liabilities and 

Liabilities: 

Dcposits 

Liabilities 

S harchol ders ' Equity 

Net lntcrcst Inconic 

Net lntcrest Spread 
Nct Interesl Margin 

$81,602 $1,229 
$59,466 $456 
$86,794 $2,486 
$67,793 $3,181 

$295,655 $7,352 
$65,591 
$3,008 

$42,198 

$406,452 

$1 4,664 

$7,987 
$3,865 

($412) 
$12,330 

$354,016 

1.51%, $62,681 $382 
0.77% $54,596 $373 
2.86"/u $75,241 $1,984 
4.69% $74,954 $2,020 

2.49% $267,472 $5,659 
$5 1,649 
$2,329 

$32,566 

$354,016 

$12,074 

3 3 %  
3.89% 

$6,425 
$3,000 

$2,316 
$6,403 

$309,446 

0.61 % $5932 1 $363 0.61% 
0.68% $45,975 $450 0.98% 
2.64% $68,898 $2,054 2.98% 
3.90% $65,282 $2,746 4.210/;, 

2.12% $239,676 $5,613 2.34%) 
$38,998 

$2,130 
$28,642 

$309,446 

$1 1.1 12 

3.22% 
3.63K 

3.37% 
3.80%1 

* Presenled on a fully PdXabk equivalent ("FTE") basis 
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Volume and Rate Variance Analysis of Net Interest and Dividend Incomc 
(Taxable equivalent basis) 

(hllurs in thousunds) 2005 over 2004 2004 over 2003 

Increase (dccrease) in: 
Interest and dividcnd income on: 

Loans $ 2,895 $ 833 $ 3,728 $ 1,139 $ (773) $ 366 
672 484 658 (344) 3 14 

( l  88) (1 88) 54 393 (79) 314 
Taxable investmcnt securities 
Tax-cxcnipt investment securitics 242 

Volume Rate Total Volume Rata Total 

Other interest earning (23)- 40 h 8 14 17 ___ - 
Total interest and dividend income $ 2,926 $ 1,357 $- $2,196 $tl .I 88) %1,008 

Interest expcnse on: 
NOW/MoneyMarket deposits $ 115 $ 732 $ 847 $ 19 $ 0 $ 19 
Savings deposits 33 50 83 84 (161) ( 77) 
Time deposits 305 I97 502 189 (259) (70) 
Borrowed funds (279) 540 26 I 407 (233) I74 

Total interest cxpense $ 174 $ 1,519 $ 1,693 $ 699 $ (653) $ 46 

Net interest and dividend income %2.752 S (1621 $ 2,59Q $1:497 $!535)  $.962 

Noninterest Income 

Noninterest income increased $110,000 or 2.31% and totalcd $4,865,000 for the year cnded December 31, 2005 as 
compared to $4,755,000 for thc year ended Dccember 3 1, 2004. Trust and investment scrvices income increased 
$160,000 to $1,571,000 primarily as a result of'the efforts of new business development. Scrvice chargcs on deposit 
accounts totalcd $642,000 for 2005. This was an increase of $21,000 or 3.38% when compared to total service 
chargcs of $621,000 in 2004. The increase was attributed to an increase in deposit account transactions. Gains on 
sales and wrilcdowns of available-for-sale securities, net totalcd $1,210,000 in 2005 and rcpresented a dccrease of 
$280,000 or 18.79% compared to $1,490,000 in 2004. This decrease reflected a writcdown of approximately 
$1 82,000, howcvcr, that was primarily attributed to movement in the market which resulted in fewer opportunities 
for the Company to enharice the rctuiii from the sccurities portfolio and at the same time realize gains on salcs of 
available-for-sale securities. Mortgage refinancing was active during 2005 as rdtcs remained attractive to consumers. 
Competition in the secondary mortgage market was very aggressive. Gains on sales of loans hcld-for-sale totaled 
$270,000 in 2005 compared to $304,000 in 2004, representing a decrease of 1 I .18%. Othcr income and loan 
coininissions howcver, increased $243,000 or 26.16% to $1,172,000 in 2005 compared to $929,000 in 2004. The 
incrcasc was primarily attributable to the increase in fees earned from activity in the secondary mortgage market due 
to the change of'investors. 

Noninterest Expense 

Nonintcrcst expense increased 17.36% for the year endcd December 31, 2005 as compared to the corrcsponding 
pcriod in 2004. Thc increases in  the noninterest expcnsces listed below were primarily attributed to the Company's 
growth as a result of the merger with Canaan National Bancorp, Inc. Thc decrease in other expense wits a reflection 
of non-recurring cxpenses in 2004 related to the conversion of thc Company's eorc processing system. The 
components of noninterest expensc and the changes in the period werc as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Occupancy expensc 
Equipment expense 
Data processing 
Insurance 
Printing and stationery 
Professional fees 
Lcgal expense 
Amortization of core dcposit intangible 
Othcr cxpense 

Total noninterest expensc 

2005 2004 $Change %Change 
$7,355 $5,971 $1,384 23.18% 

728 482 246 51.04 
777 600 177 29.50 

1,014 887 127 14.32 
148 122 26 21.31 
278 262 16 6.11 
307 279 28 10.04 
264 173 91 52.60 
164 101 63 62.38 

1,409 1,726 (317) (18.37) 
$12.444 $10.603 $1!841- 17.36 
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Income Taxes 

In 2005, the Company's income tax provision totaled $1 , I  14,000 that reflected an effective tax rate of 19.63%. This 
cornpared to an income tax provision of $775,000 and an effective tax rate of 16.16?4 for the same pcriod in 2004. 
This increase was primarily attributed to an increase in taxable income. 

Net lncome 

Overall, net income was $4,561,000 for thc year ended Deccmbcr 31, 2005. This compared to net income of 
$4,019,000 for thc year ended December 31, 2004. This was an increase of $542,000 or 13.49% and representcd 
earnings per average share outstanding of $2.71. Earnings per average share outstanding for the year ended 
December 3 1, 2004 was $2.67. The increase in net income was primarily the result of an increase in earning assets 
resulting from the merger with Canaan National Bancorp, Tnc. 

W l  N GNClAL CON I) I'l'lON 
Comparison of December 3 7,2006 and 2005 

Total assets at December 3 1, 2006 were $450,340,000 compared to $402,922,000 at December 3 1, 2005. This is an 
increase of 1 1.77%. The incrcase is primarily the result of an increase in loans and thc securities portfolio that were 
funded by an increase in deposits and advances froin the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston. 

Securities Portfolio 

The Company manages the securities portfolio in accordance with the investment policy adopted by thc Board of 
Directors. The primary objectives are to earn interest and dividcnd income, provide liquidity to mcct cash flow 
needs and to manage interest ratc risk and asset-quality diversifications to the Company's assets. Thc securities 
portfolio also acts as collatcral for deposits of public agencics. As of December 3 1 ,  2006, the securities portfolio, 
including Federal Homc Loan Bank of Boston stock, totaled $161,23 1,000. This represents an increase of' 
$1 0,063,000 or 6.66% over year-end 2005. 

Securities are classified in the portfolio as eithcr securities-available-for-sale or sccurities-held-to-maturity. 
Securities for which the Company has the ability and positive intent to hold until maturity are reported as hcld-to- 
maturity. These securities are carried at cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. 
Securities that are held for indefinite periods of time and which management intends to use as part of its 
asscb'liability management strategy, or  that may bc sold in response to changes in interest rates, changes in 
prepayment risk, increases in capital rcquirements or other similar factors, are classified as available-for-sale. These 
securities are stated at fair valuc in the financial statements of thc Company. Temporary differences between 
available-for-sale securities' amorti7ed cost and fair market valuc (accumulated other comprehensivc income or loss 
when net of tax) are not included in earnings, but are reported as a net amount (less expected tax) in a separate 
componcnt of capital until realized. Thc cost basis of individual securities is written down to estimated fair value 
through a charge to earnings when decreases in value below amortized cost arc considered to bc other than 
temporary. This other than temporary impainncnt is charged to securities gain on the Company's financial 
statements. At December 3 I ,  2006, thc unrealized loss (accumulated other comprehensive loss) net of tax was 
$1,190,000. This compares to an unrealized loss net of tax of $2,601,000 at Decembcr 31, 2005. The Company 
monitors thc market valuc fluctuations of its securities portfolio on a monthly basis as wcll as associated credit 
ratings to dcterrnine potential impairment of a security. 

Federal Funds Sold 

Federal funds sold at Deceinbcr 31, 2006 totaled $1,000,000. There were no federal funds sold at December 31, 
2005. This reprcsents a normal operating range of funds for daily cash needs. 

Lending 

Ncw business development during the year coupled with an increase in loan demand resultcd in an increase in net 
loans outstanding to $252,464,000 at December 31, 2006, as compared to $21 5,989,000 at December 31, 2005. This 
is an increase of $36,475,000 or 16.89%. Although the largest dollar volumes of loan activity continues to be in the 



residential niortgage area, tlic Company o l h s  a wide variety of loan typus and terms along with competitive pricing 
to customers. At December 31, 2006, the portfolio also included $12,000,000 in Term federal funds, whch arc 
short term loans to other financial imtitutions. The Company’s credit function is designed to ensure adherence to 
prudent crcdit st:mn&rds despite coinpetition I’or loans in the Compdiy’s market area. 
‘lhe following table represents the composition of the loan portfolio comparing Dcccmber 3 1, 2000 to December 3 I ,  
2005: 

December 3 I ,  2006 December 3 1,2005 
(amounts in thousands) 

Corruricrcial, firuincial and agricultural $ 16,465 $ 15,354 
Real Estatc-construction and land development 21,169 18,814 
Red Estatc-residential 1453 95 135,619 
Real Estate-coinmerci:il 50,859 40,889 
Consumer 8,X 16 7,900 
Term federal funds 12,000 0 
Other 69 47 

254,773 2 18,623 
Deferred costs, net 168 0 
1Jnc;arned income (3) (8) 

Net loans g52.464 $215.989 
Allowuicc Ibr loan losses (2,474) (2,626) 

Pmvisions and Allowance for Loan Losscs 

‘l’otal loans outstaiidmg at of December 3 1, 2006 were $254,773,000. Included in  the aforernentioncd figure is 
$12,000,000 in Tcnn federal funds, which :ire short term l o r n  to othw financial institutions and whch arc netted 
from total loans lor purposes of analysis of the Allowance for Loa11 and 1,ease Losscs (ALLL). As a result, 
loans outstanding at Deceiiiber 3 1, 2006 was $242,773,000 net of term fcdcral funds sold compared to net loans 
2005. Ths is an increase oC $24,150,000 or 11.050/. ‘ l h s  growth can be attributed primarily to an increase in both 
outstanding of $21 8,623,000 at December 3 1, residential and commercial real estate loui demand as well as the 
nank’s new business dcveloprnent program. Approximately 90% of the Company’s loan portfolio continues to be 
real estate secured. 

Crcdit risk is inherent in the business of extcnding loans. ‘llie Coiiipany monitors thc loan portfolio Lo ensure that 
loan quality will not be sacrificed for growth or otherwise comproinise the Company’s objectives. kcause  of the 
risk associated with cxtcnding loans the Company imintiiw an allowance or reserve for loan and lease losses 
through clurges to earnings. ‘lhe Company evaluates the adequacy of the allowance on a monthly basis. Such 
evaluations are based on assessments of crcdit quality and trends within the portfolio and “risk rating” of loans by 
senior iimnagcment, whch is reviewed by the Company’s 1,oan Comrnittcc on a regular basis. I,oms are initially 
risk rated whcn originated. If there is deterioration in the crcdit quality, the risk rating is adjusted accordingly. 

The ALLL :at 1)cccmher 3 1, 2006 totaled $2,474,000 representing 256.9 IYo of nonpcrlorming loans of $963,000 
and 1.02Y0 of total loans outstanding net o f  term federal funds sold or $242,773,000. This compares to :in 
ALLL of $2,026,000 whch is 339.72%) of nonperforming loans ol‘ $773,000 and 1.20% of total loans outstmding 
of* $218,621,000 at December 3 1, 2005. Management reduced the al1ow:uice hy$87,488 that had previoiasly been 
expensed through the loan loss provision from prior years. This was justified by positive trends in the loan portfolio 
and low levels of delinquencies and net charge-offs as well as low levels of classified and nonperforniing loans. 

A scparate component that i s  evaluated is the Allowaiicc for Off Balance Shcct Commitments which totaled $36,000 
as of Decenibcr 3 I, 2006. ‘llie two allowanccs combined brought the total ALLL to $2,5 10,000 or 1.03% of total 
loans oulslanding. The Uecernhcr 3 1 ,  2005 comparison included $134,000 in tlic Allowance for Off Ralance Sheet 
Comtrlitmcnts bringing the total combined ALLL to $2,760,000 or 1.26% of total loans. A total of $132,000 in 
loans were charged-off during the 2006 year compared to $1 34,000 during 2005. Rccovcries of previously charged- 
off loans totaled $67,000 during the 2006 year cornpared to $39,000 in recoveries for 2005. 



The allowance also iticludcs a component resulting from the applicalion of the rrieasurement criteria of Statements 
01‘ Financial Accounting St:m&irds No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for 1mp:iinnent of a Loan (“SFAS 114”). 
Trnpaird loaiw receive individual evaluation 01‘ the allowance necessary on a montldy basis. Loans to he considered 
for impairment are defined in the Company’s Tman Policy as commercial loans with balances outstanding of 
$100,000 or more and residcntial real estate rriortgages with balances ol‘ $300,000 or more. Such loans are 
considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will not be able to collect all principal and interest due 
according to the t e r n  of the note. 

Any such commercial loan and/or rcsidcnlial mortgage will be coisidered for impairment undcr any of the following 
circumstances : 

1. Nori-:iccm:d status; 
2. 
3. 
4. 

Loaix over 90 days delinquent; 
‘Troubled debt restructures consummated after December 3 I ,  1994; 
Loans classified as “doubtful”, meaning that thcy have weaknesses, whch make collection or liquidation in 
full, on the basis ol’ currently existing facts, conditions, and valucs, highly questionable and improbable. 

The individual allowance for any impaired loan is based upon the present vdue of expected fiiture cash llows 
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or tht: fair value of the collateral if the loan is col1ater:rl dependent. 
Specifically identifiable and quantifiable losses :ire immediately charged off against the allowance. 

In addition, a risk of loss factor is applied in ev:valuating categories of loans as pad of the periodc analysis of the 
Allowancc lilr T.oan and Lease Losses. ‘ l l is  analysis reviews the allocations of the different categories of loans 
within the portfolio :md considers historical loan losses and delinquency balances :IS well :IS recent delinquent 
percentage trends. 

The credt card delinquency and loss history is separ:itely ev:valu:ited : i d  givcn a special loan loss factor because 
management recognizes the hgher risk involvcd in such loans. Concentrations of credit and local economic factors 
arc also evaluated on a periodic basis. Historical averages of net losses by loan types are examined as wcll as trends 
by type. The Rank’s 1o:m rnix over the same period of  time is also analyzed. A loan loss allocation is made li)r each 
type of loan multiplied by the loan mix pcrccnlagc for each loan type to produce :I weighted average factor. 

While mmagerrient estimates loan losses using the best wailable information, no msurmccs can bc given that future 
additiorw to the allowance will not be ucccssary based on changes in economic: and real estate market conditiom, 
identification of additional problem loam or other factors. Additionally, despite the excellent overdl quality of the 
loan porihlio and with expectations of the Company to continue to grow its existing porilidio, future additions to 
the allowance iiiay be necessary to maint;iin adequate reserve cover:ige. Overall, managcmcnl is ol’ the opinion that 
the AT,T .TI is adequate its of December 3 1, 200h. 

Dc posits 

The Cornp:iny offers :I variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest rates and terms. Deposits at year-end 2006 
tolalcd $3 13,586,000 compared to $287,271,000 at year-end 2005. The Company continues its efforts to 
compclitively price products and develop and 1nairit:iin relationshp b;iding with its customers. The flow of deposits 
is irfluenced significantly by general economic conditions, changes in money market rates, prevailing interest rates 
:tiid the aggressive competition from nonbanking cntitics. 1)uring the year, there was a climgc in ihc mix of deposits. 

DeirEiiid, NOW and s:+vings bsl:uices, which arc lower cost core deposits, decreased and were replaced primirily by 
time deposits, which as illustrated by the table below, msults in :I sigmficant increase in interest expense. 

‘l’he average daily aniount of deposits by category and the average rates paid on such deposits arc summarized in the 
Mlowing table: 



( h l l w v  in thousands) Year ended Decernher 31 
2006 2005 2004 

Average Averuge A verug 
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balunce Rate 

Demand $ 65,151 $ 65,591 $ 51,649 
NOW 25,090 .26% 27,767 .25% 23,797 .01% 
Money Markct 54,266 3.22 '% 53,835 2.1 5Yo 3X,884 .X3Y" 
Savings 48,882 1.3 1 Yn 59,466 .77% 54,596 .6X'Y" 
Time 106,395 4.17% 86,794 2.86% 75,241 2.64% 

%299,784 2.29% $2293.453 1.42% $244.167 1.12% 

Maturities of time certificates of deposits o1'$100,000 or more oiitstanding at December 31 are summarized as 
follows: 

(dollurs in thousands) Decemhrr 3 I 
2006 2005 2004 

Three months or less $ 12,045 $ 9,763 9; 9,540 
Over three months through six months 8,946 1,057 1,011 
Over six months through one year 24,791 x,774 7,517 
Over one year 9,533 X,O69 14,887 

Borrowinps 

As part o f  its operating strategy, the Company utilizes advances from the Federal Homc Loan Bank to supplement 
deposit growth and fund its asset growth, a strategy that is designed to increase interest income. These advanccs are 
inade pursuant to various credit programs, each of which has its own interest rate and rangc of maturities. At 
December 3 1 ,  2006, the Company had $87,093,000 in outstanding advanccs from the Fcderal Home Loan Bank 
compared to $71,016,000 at December 31, 2005. Managemcnt expccts that it will continue this strategy of' 
supplementing deposit growth with advanccs from Federal TIome Loan Rank of Boston. 

Tnterest Rate Risk 

lntercst rate risk i s  the most significant market risk affecting tho Company. Interest rate risk is defined as an 
exposure to a movument in interest rates that could have an advcrse effcct on nct interest income. Nct interest 
income is scnsitive to interest rate risk to the degree that interest bearing liabilities mature or reprice on a different 
basis than earning assets. 

The Bank's assets and liabilities arc managed in accordance with policies established and reviewed by the Bank's 
Board of Directors. The Bank's Asscb'Liability Managemcnt Committee monitors asset and deposit levels, 
developments and trends in interest ratcs, liquidity and capital. One o f  the primary financial objectives is to manage 
interest rate risk and control the sensitivity of earnings to changes in interest ratcs in order to prudently improve net 
interest income and manage thc maturities and interest rate sensitivities of assets and liabilities. 

The Bank uses assct/liability modeling software to develop scenario analyses which measure the impact that 
changing interest ratcs have on net interest income. These modcl simulations are projccted out over a two year time 
horizon, assuming proportional upward and downward interest rate movements of 100, 200 and 300 basis points. 
Simulations are projected out in two ways: 

(1) using the same balance sheet as the Bank had on the simulation date, and 

(2) using a growing balance sheet bawd on recent growth patterns and slrategics. 



As interest rates rise or fall, these simulations incorporate expected futurc lending rates, current and expected future 
runding sources and cost, the possible exercise of options, changes in prepayment rates, and othcr factors which may 
be important in determining the future growth of net interest income. The rates we earn on our assets and the rates 
wc pay on our liabilities arc generally fixed for a contractual period of time. Imbalance in these contractual 
maturities can create signiticant earnings volatility because market interest rates change over time. In a period of 
rising intcrcst rates, the interest income earned on assets may not increase as rapidly as the interest paid on 
liabilities. In a period of declining interest rates the interest income earned on assets may decrease more rapidly than 
the intcrcst paid on liabilities. This would primarily bc attributed to accelerated prepayments on loans and securities 
that arc significantly influenced by movements in market rates. 

The net interest margin may be adversely affected by several possible interest rate environments. Foremost, a 
continued flat or inverted yield curve which results in shorter term market interest rates that equal or exceed those of 
longer term rates. This could Further increase the Bank’s cost 01‘ interest-bearing liabilities that continue to outpace 
its yield on carning assets resulting in additional net intcrcst rate spread compression. 

Liquidity 

Liquidity is the ability to raise funds on a timely basis at an acceptable cost in order to meet cash needs. Adequate 
liquidity is necessary to handle fluctuation in deposit levels, to provide for customers’ credit needs, and to take 
advantage of investment opportunities as they are presented. The Company manages liquidity primarily with readily 
markctable invcstmcnt securities, deposits and loan repayments. The Company’s subsidiary, Salisbury Bank and 
Trust Company is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston that provides a source of available 
borrowings for liquidity. 

At Dcccmbcr 3 I ,  2006, thc Company had approximately $60,046,000 in loan commitments outstanding. 
Management believes that the current level of liquidity is ample to meet the Company’s needs for both the present 
and foreseeable future. 

Capital 

At Dcccmbcr 31, 2006, the Company had $44,349,000 in shareholders’ equity compared to $41,442,000 at 
Tlecember 31, 2005. This represents an increase of $2,907,000 or 7.01%. Several components contributed to the 
change since December 2005. Earnings for the year totaled $4,254,000. Securities in the portfolio that are classified 
as available-for-sale are adjusted to fair value monthly and the unrcahcd losses or gains arc not included in 
earnings, but are reported as a net amount (less cxpcctcd tax) as a separate component 01‘ capital until rcalimi 
Market fluctuations of fair value of the securities portfolio during 2006 resulted in othcr comprehensive income net 
of tax totaling $1,411,000. The initial application of SFAS No. 158, as dciincd below in rcccnt accounting 
pronouncements, resulted in othcr comprehensive loss, net of tax of $1,038,000 in  2006. Thc Company declared 
dividends in 2006 resulting in a decrease in capital of $1,75 1,000. The Company issued 840 new shares of common 
stock under the terms of the Director Stock Retainer Plan during thc sccond quartcr of 2006 which rcsulted in an 
increase in capital of $32,000. 

Under current regulatory definitions, the c‘omnpany and the Bank arc considered to be “well capitalized” for capital 
adequacy purposes. As a result, the Bank pays the lowest federal deposit insurance deposit prcmiums possible. One 
primary measure of capital adequacy for regulatory purposcs is based on the ratio of risk-based capital to risk 
weighted assets. This method of measuring capital adcquacy helps to establish capital rcyuircmcnts that arc sensitive 
to the differences in risk associated with various assets. It takes into account oll-balance shcct cxposurc in assessing 
capital adequacy and it minimizes disincentives to holding liquid, low risk assets. At year-end 2006, thc Company 
had a risk-based capital ratio of 15.28% coinpared to 15.76% at Dcccmbcr 31, 2005. Maintaining strong capital is 
essential to bank safety and soundness. However, the cll‘cctivc managcmcnt of capital resources requires generating 
attractivc returns on equity to build value for shareholders while maintaining appropriate levels of capital to fund 
growth, inccl regulatory rcqiiireinents and be consistent with prudent industry practices. Management believes that 
the capital ratios of the Company and Hank are adequate to continue to meet the foreseeable capital needs of the 
institution. 



lmoact of Inflation and Charwing Priccs 

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
acceptcd in the United States of America which require the ineasurcment of financial condition and operating results 
in terms of historical dollars without considering changes in tlie rclative purchasing power ol‘moncy, over time, due 
to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the asscts and liabilities of tlie Company are monetary 
and as a result, interest rates tcnd to have a greatcr impact on the Company’s pcrformance than do the effects of 
general levels of inflation. Although interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or with the same 
magnitude as the prices of goods and services, inflation could impact earnings in future periods. 

Rccent Accounting Pronouncements 

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Hoard (FASB) issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for 
Certain Hybrid lnslruments” (SFAS No. 155), which permits, but does not require, fair value accounting for any 
hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that would otherwisc require bifurcation in 
accordance with SFAS 133. The statement also subjects beneficial interests issued by securitization vehiclcs to the 
rcquiremcnts of SFAS No. 133. The statement is effective as of January I ,  2007. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 is 
n o t  expected to have a inaterial impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. 

[n March 2006, the FASB issucd SPAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets- an amendment of 
FASB statement No. 140” (SFAS No. 156). SFAS No. 156 requires an entity to recognize a servicing asset or 
servicing liability each time it undertakes an obligation to scrvice a tinancial assct by entering into a servicing 
contract in specific situations. Additionally, the scrvicing asset or servicing liability shall be initially measured at 
fair value; howevcr, an entity may elect the “arnortization method” or Yair value method” for subsequent balance 
sheet reporting periods. SPAS No. I56 is eflcctive as of an entity’s first liscal ycar beginning after September 15, 
2006. F::.arly adoption is permitted as of the bcginning of an cntity’s liscal year, provided the entity has not yet 
issucd financial statements, including intcriin financial statements, for any period of that fiscal year. The Company 
does not expect the adoption of this statement to havc a material impact on its financial condition, results of 
operations or cash ilows. 

In September 2006, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS No. 157). SFAS No. 157 
defnics fair value, cstablislics a framework for measuring lair value under generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) and cnliances disclosures about fair value mcasuremcnts. SFAS No. 157 retains the exchange price notion 
and clarifies that the cxchangc price is the pricc that would bc received for an asset or paid to transler a liability (an 
exit pricc) in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. SFAS No. 157 is 
effective for the Company’s consolidated financial statcments for the year beginning on January 1 ,  2008, with 
earlier adoption permitted. Management is currently evaluating the effect of SFAS No. 157 on the Company’s 
financial condition and results of‘operations. The Company does not expcct thc adoption of this statemcnt to have a 
material impact on its financial condition and results of operations. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and 
other Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No 87, 88, 106 and 132(K)” (SFAS No. 158). 
SFAS No. 158 requires 1) the recognition oi‘ an assct or liability for the over-funded or under-funded status of a 
defined benefit plan, 2 )  thc recognition of actuarial gains and Iosscs and prior scrvice costs and credits in other 
comprehensive income, 3 )  mcasuremcnt of plan asscts and bcnefit obligations as o l  the employer’s balance sheet 
date, rather than at interim mcasuremcnt dates as currently allowed, and 4) disclosure of additional information 
concerning actuarial gains and losses and prior scrvice costs and credits recognized in  other comprehensive income. 
This statement is effective for financial statements with liscal years ending aftcr December 15, 2006. The adoption 
of this Statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash 
llows. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

The Company is party to tinancial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of‘busincss to mcct the 
linancing needs of its customers. In the opinion of management, these ofiLbalancc sheet arrangcments arc not likcly to 



luvc a material effect on the Comp:iny’s financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity. (Scc Note 11 lo the 
Financial Statements). 

Forward Lookiny Statcmcnts 

‘ lh s  Annual Keport and fnturc lilings made by the Company with the Securities and Exchmge Commission, a s  well 
as other filings, reports and press rclcascs made or issued by the Company : i d  the B:mnk, and oral statements made 
by executive o lkc r s  oK the Company and the Bank, may include forward-looking statements relating to such 
matters as: 

(a) 

(h) 

assumptions concerning futurc economic and business conditions and their effect on the economy in 
general and on the markets in whch the Coinpany and the nank do business, and 
expectations for increased revenues and earnings lor the Company and Rank through growth resulting from 
acquisitions, attraction of new deposit and loan customers and the introduction of new products and 
serviccs. 

Such forward-looking statements are based on assumptions rather than historical or current facts and, therefore, :ire 
inherently unccrhin and subject to risk. For those statenients, the Company claims the protection of the safe harbor 
lor forward-loolung statements contained in the Private Xccurities Litigation Act of 1WS. 

The Company notes that a variety ol‘ factors could cause the ach~:il results or experience to dillkr nlalcrially from the 
anticipated results or other expectations described or implied by sudi forward-loolung statements. ‘l’he risks and 
unccrhintics that rnay effect the operation, pcrli)rmancc, development and results of the Company’s and Flank’s 
business include the following: 

(a) 

(h) 

(c) 
(d) 
(e) 

the risk of adverse clunges in business conditions in the b d n g  industry genier:illy : i d  in the spccilic 
markets in which the J3:mnk operatcs; 
c h i g e s  in the legislative and regulatory enviroimient that negatively iinpact the Company and R a k  
through increased operating expenses; 
increased competition lrom other Iiilancial and non-firwici:ml institutions; 
the iinpact of technological advances; and 
other risks detailed froin time to time in the Comnp:iny’s filings with the Securities md Exchange 
Commission. 

Such developments could lxivc an advcrsc imp:ict on the Company’s and the kink’s  financial position and results of 
operations. 

Ouantitative and Qualitativu Disclosures about Market Risk 

The main components of inirkd risk lor the Company are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. ‘lhe 
Company manages interest rate risk and liquidity risk through an ALCO Comtmittee comprised of outsidc Directors 
and senior management. ‘lhe committcc monitors compliance with the Rink’s Assct/l .iability Policy whch 
cstablislies guidelines to meet various applicable regulatory rules arid statutcs, mcasurcs the various risks facing the 
bank o n  a consistent basis slid coordinates the management of tlie bank’s fiixincial position. Model simulation is 
used to mcasure earnings volatility under both rising :ind falling interest rate scenarios. The Company’s interest rate 
risk and liquidity position his not sigruficantly changed from yewend 2006. 
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Statemcnt of Manawment’s Responsibilitv 

Managcment is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial statements and other 
information appearing in this Annual Report. The consolidated tinancial statements were prepared in accordance 
with accounting principles generally acccpted in the Unitcd States of America applying cslirnaks and managerncnt’s 
best judgment as required. To li~lfill their responsibilities, management establishes and maintains accouiiling 
systems and practices adcquately supported by internal accounting controls. These controls include the selection and 
training of inanageinent and supervisory personnel; an organization structure providing for delegation of authority 
and establishment or responsibilitics; communication of requirements for compliance with approved accounting, 
control and business practiccs throughout the organiLation; business planning and review; and a program of internal 
audit. Management believes thc internal accounting controls in use provide rcasonablc assurance thal assets are 
safeguarded, that transaclions arc executcd in accordance with managcment’s authorization and that linancial 
rccords are reliable for the purposc of preparing financial htatemenls. Shatswell, MacLeod and Company, P.C. has 
been engaged to provide an indepcndent opinion on the fairness 01‘ the consolidated financial stalements. Their 
report appears in this Annual Report. 

(JAn F. Perotti 
Chief Executive Officer m i e f  Financial officer. 

Treasurer & Secretary 
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To the Board of Directors 
Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. 
Lakeville, Connecticut 

-. REPOR'I' OF INDEPIINDENT REGISTERED PIJBLIC ACCOUNT1 NG FIRM 

Wc have audited the accompanying consolidatcd balance shccts of Salisbury Rancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary as of 
Dcccmber 3 1, 2006 and 2005 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' cquity 
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 3 1,2006. These consolidated 
linancial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Hoard 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated tinancia1 statements are free of material misstatcrnent. The Company is not required to 
have, nor were we engaged to perfonn, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included 
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis Ibr designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposc of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated iinancial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates madc by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statemcnt presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements rcfcrred to abovc present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidatcd financial position of Salisbury Bancorp, lnc. and Subsidiary as of December 3 1,2006 and 2005, and 
the consolidated results of their opcrations and thcir cash flows for each ol'the years in the three-year period ended 
Dccember 3 1, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Aa%Ml,$p&t+ &t.py, c! c . 
SHATSWELL, MacLF,OD &L COMPANY, P.C. 

West Pcabody, Massachusetts 
March 14, 2007 

83 PINE STREET WEST PEABODY, MASSACHUSFITS 01980-3835 ELEPHONE (978) 535-0206 FAGSIMILE (978) 535-9908 
srncOshafswell.com ww.shatswell.com 

http://srncOshafswell.com
http://ww.shatswell.com


SALISBURY BANCORP. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCI: SHEETS 

Decciiihcr 3 1, 2006 and 2005 

ASSETS 
Cash and due from banks 
Tntcrest-bearing demand deposits with other banks 
Money mukct mutual funds 
Federal Funds sold 

Investments in available-for-sale securities (at fair value) 
Investments in held-to-maturity sccuritics (fair values of $743 1 8 and $147,202 

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 
Loan held-for-sale 
Loans, less allowance for loan losses of $2,474,118 and $2,626,170 as of 

Investment in real cstate 
Premiscs and equipment 
Goodwill 
C’ore deposit intangible 
Accrued interest rcceivable 
Cash surrender value ol‘lifc insurance policies 
Othcr assets 

Cash and cash equivalenls 

as of Decciiibcr 3 1,2006 and 2005, rcspectively) 

December 3 1 ~ 2006 and 2005, rcspectively 

Total assets 

LT ABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ F,QUlTY 
Deposits: 

Noninterest-bearing 
Interest-bcaring 

Total dcposits 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 
Due lo broker 
Other liabilities 

Shareholders’ equity: 
Total liabilities 

Conunoii stock, par value $.I0 pcr share; authorized 3,000,000 shares; issued 
and outstanding, 1,684,lX 1 shares in 2006 and 1,683,341 sharus in 2005 

Paid-in capital 
Rctained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total sharcholders’ equity 
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 

2006 2005 
$ 8,988,609 $ 8,431,844 

568,693 652,807 
1,199,881 1,119,724 
1,000,000 0 

1 1,757,183 10,204,375 
156,492,547 145,608,297 

74,93 1 146,856 
4,663,700 5,413,200 

304,000 0 

252,464,430 
75,000 

6,135,546 
9,509,305 
1,493,409 
2,483,547 
3,554,995 
1,330,987 

$450,334,670 

21 5,989,149 
75,000 

6,45 1,979 
9,509,305 
1,657,715 
2,362,924 
3,424,186 
2,079,307 

$402,922.293 

$ 70,502,249 $ 63,995,665 
243,084,032 223,275,537 
313,586,281 287,271,202 

71,015,614 
1,579,61 1 0 
3,731,195 3, 193,154 

405,990,489 361,479,970 

87,093,402 

168,418 168,334 
13,099,XXl 13,068,045 
33,602,991 3 1 ,I 00,702 
(2,522,109) (2,894,758) 
44,349,181 4 1,442,323 

$450.339,670 $402,922,293 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thcsc consolidated financial statements. 



SALlSBURY HANCOIU', TNC. ANI) SUBSIDIARY 

CONS01 JDATED S'I'ATEMEN'I'S OF INCOME 

Years tlndcd Decemhcr 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004 

2006 

$15,686,978 

Taxable 5,604,866 
Tax-exempt 2,079,98 1 

Dividends on equity securities 277,356 
Other intcrcst 80.4 12 

23,729,593 

Intercst on deposits 6,8 85,893 
Tnterest on Federal Home Loan Bank advances 3,573,052 

Total interest expense 10,458,945 
Net interest and dividend income 13,270,648 

(87,488) 
Net interest and dividend incomc alter (benefit) provision 

Interest and dividend income: 
Interest and fees on loans 
Tnterest on debt securities: 

Total intcrcst and dividend income 
Interest cxpcnse: 

(Benefit) provision for loan losses 

lor loan losses 13,358,136 

Trust dcpartinent income 1,980,500 
Loan commissions 117,298 
Service charges on deposit accounts 707,43 1 
Gain on sales and writedown ol'available-for-salc sccurities, net 5 17,326 
Gain on sales of loans held-for-salc 357,62X 
Other incomc 902,394 

Total nonintercsl income 4,582,577 

Salaries and employee benefits 7,150,746 
Occupancy expense 75 1,670 
Equipment expensc 786,637 

Noninterest income: 

Nonintercst expense: 

Data proccssing 1 ,I 34,078 
Conversion expense 0 
Insusance 154,562 
Printing and stationery 239,617 
Professional fccs 554,686 
Legal expense 151,414 
Amortization of core deposit intangible 164,216 
Other expense 1,157,534 

Total noninterest expcnse 12,245.160 
Tncomc before income taxes 5,695,553 

Income taxes 1.441,935 
Net income $4?253,61 X 

Earnings per common sliarc fi 2.53 

2005 

$13,319,930 

4,s 14,993 
2,320,414 

282,534 
69,512 

20,816,383 

4,17 1,360 
3,l 80,591 
7,35 1.95 1 

13,464,432 
210,000 

13,254,432 

1,571,3 11 
260,997 
642,268 

1,209,724 
270,061 
9 10.743 

4,865, I04 

7,355,3 I6 
728,302 
776,729 

1,013,785 
0 

148,3 17 
277,640 
306,753 
263,575 
164,416 

1.408,949 
12,443,782 
5,675,754 
1.1 14,413 

- $ 4,561,341 

$2.71 

The accompanying notes are an intcgral part of these consolidated hancial statcmcnts. 

28 

2004 

$ 9,592,478 

4,499,725 
2,293,706 

1 I2,OOX 
53,101 

I6S5 1 ,O 1 8 

2,738,680 
2,920,3 16 
5,658,996 

10,892,022 
250,000 

10.642,022 

1,4 10,X 14 
239, I39 
620,771 

1,489,905 
304,354 
690,198 

4,755,181 

5,970,639 
482,s 16 
600,127 
886,6 18 
464,484 
121,959 
261,898 
278,709 
173,333 
101,109 

1,261,921 
10~503,313 
4,793,890 

774.948 
$4.01 8,942 

$ 2.67 



SALISBURY BANCORP, INC. ANI) SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLlnATED S‘I’ATEMEN‘I’S OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ KQIJITY 

Years Ended 13ccaiiber 3 1 ,,2006, 2005 and 2004 

Number 
of 

Shares 
Issued 

1,424,078 Balance, Decembcr 3 I ,  2003 
Comprehensive income: 

Nct income 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 

cffcct 
Comprchewive income 

Sharcs issued for merger 257,483 
Issuaiicc of 840 sharcs for Directors’ fees 840 
Dividcnds declarcd ($.96 per sharc) 
Balance, Dccciiiber 31,2004 l,682,4O I 
Cloniprehcnsive incomc: 

Net incomc 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 

cffect 
C‘omprclicnsive iiicomc 

Tssuancc of  940 sharcs for Directors’ fees 
Dividends dcclared ($1.00 per share) 
Balance, December 3 I ,  2005 
Comprehensivc income: 

940 

1,683,341 

Nct income 
Othcr coiiiprehcnsive income, nct of lax 

cffcct 
Comprehensivc income 

Issuance of 840 shares for Directors’ fccs 
Dividends dcclated ($1.04 per share) 
Balance, December 3 1,2006 

840 

I .684.1 8J 

Common Paid-in 
Stock Capital 

$142,408 $2,327, I5 I 

25,748 10,672,670 
84 3 1,752 

168,240 13,031,573 

94 36,472 

168,334 13,068,045 

84 3 1,836 

$ I  68.43  $1.7.099,881 - 

Reclassification clisclosurc for the years cnded Decembcr 3 1 : 

UnrealiLed holding gains (losscs) on availablc-for-sale securities 
Ne1 unrealizcd holding gains (losses) on available-[or-sale sccurities 
Reclassification adjustment for ne1 realized gains in net income 

Income lax (expcnse) benefit 

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. I 58 
Minimum pension liability adj usttnent 
Income tax bcnefit (expensc) 

lJnrealizcd holding gains (losses) on availablc-for-sale securities, net of tax 

SFAS No. I58 pension liability or minimum pension liability, net of tax 
Other comprehensive incomc (loss), net of tax 

Accumulaled othcr comprehensive loss consists of the following as ofncccmber 3 1 : 

Nct unrcalized holding losses on availablc-tbr-sale securitics, net ol 
SFAS No.  I58 pension liability, net oftaxcs 
Minimum pcnsion liability aqiustment, net of taxes 
Accumulated othcr comptehensivc loss 

.taxes 

Retained 
EarninEs 

$25,694,836 

4,018,942 

( 1,491.3 I 2) 
28,222,466 

4,561,341 

( 1.683.1 OS) 
3 I ,  100,702 

4,253,6 I8 

(1,751,329) 
$33.602,9U 

2006 

$2,654,494 
(5 17,3261 

2,137,168 
(726,637) 

1.41 0,53 I 
(1,572,548) 

0 
534,666 

(1.037,XRZ) 
$ 372.649 

2006 
$( I ,  190,323 j 
(1,33 1,786) 

0 
!32.S22,109) 

Accuiiiulatcd 
Other 

Comprcliensive 
(Loss) Income 

$ 685,817 

( I  ,408,496) 

(722,679) 

(2,172,079) 

(2,894,758) 

372,649 

$(2,537,109) 

2005 

$(I ,547,2 14) 
(1,209.724) 
(2,756,938) 

878,763 
( I  ,878,175) 

0 
(445,309) 
151,405 

(293,904) 
m 2 . 0 7 2 )  

2005 
$(2,000,854) 

0 
(293,904) 

9;(2.894,753) 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of’ these conscilidated financial statements. 

Total 
$28,850,212 

2,611 0,446 
10,6Y 8,418 

3 1,836 
(1,491.3 I 2) 
40,699,600 

2,389,262 
36,566 

(1.683,lOS) 
41,442,323 

4,626,267 
3 1,920 

(1,751.329) 
- s 4 4 . 3 4 9 m  

2004 

$( 1, 106,610) 
(1.489,905) 
(2,590,5 15) 
I ,011.343 

( 1 ,S 85. I 72) 
0 

289,396 
(1 12.720) 
176.676 

$( 1.408924) 

2004 
$ (722,679) 

0 
0 

$_(722&79) 



SALISBURY BANCORP, TNC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Ycars Ended Dccernber 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004 

2006 2005 2004 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income $ 4.253.618 $ 4,561,341 $ 4,018,942 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash providcd by 

operating activities: 
Amortization of securitics, nct 
Gain on sales and writedown of available-for-sale sccurities, net 
(Rencfit) provision for loan losses 
Change in loans held-for-sale 
Change in defcrred loan costs, net 
(Decrease) increase in uncarncd income on loans 
Nct decrease (increase) in inortgrtge servicing rights 
Write-off of equipment 
Depreciation and amortization 
Amortimtion of core deposit intangible 
Amortization of fair value adjustment on loans 
Accretion of fair value adjustments on deposits and borrowings 
(Incrcase) decrease in interest receivable 
Dcferrcd tax expense 
(Tncrease) decrease in prepaid expenses 
lncreasc in cash surrcnder value of insurance policies 
Decrease (increase) in income tax rcceivablc 
lncreasc in other assets 
Decrease in accrued expenses 
lncreasc in interest payable 
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities 
Issuance of shares for Directors' fees 

, ,  

34,953 
(517,326) 
(87,488) 

(304,000) 
(168,573) 

(4,9 13) 
78,715 

0 
538,449 
164,2 I6 
112,712 

(1 34,2 17) 

396,418 
(LO3 1,5 10) 

(130,809) 
I 8 1,005 
(9 1,796) 

(243,196) 
257,975 
(57,050) 
3 1,920 

(1 11,012) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,168,091 

Cash flows from investing activitics: 
Redcmption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 
Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 
Purchases of available-for-sale securities 
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 
Procecds from maturities of available-for-sale sccurities 
Proceeds from maturities of'held-to-maturity securities 
Loan originations and principal collections, nct 
Purchases of loans 
Recoveries of loans previously charged off 
Capital expenditures 
Proceeds from salc of equipment 
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Iirom Canaan National 

Cash paid to Canaan National Bancorp, Inc. shareholders 
Bancorp, Inc. net of expenses paid of $309,419 

860,200 
(1 10,700) 

(83,058,698) 
62,356,620 
14,007,603 

71,691 
(36,142,073) 

(252,000) 
67,054 

(207,787) 
0 

0 
0 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (42,408,090) 

302,781 
(1,209,724) 

2 1 0,000 
375,000 

0 
(10,473) 
83,471 

0 
529,238 
164,416 
184,256 

(154,287) 
( I  10,482) 

67,273 
14,242 

(130,638) 
336,288 

(268,051) 
42,822 
59,445 
36,566 

(5 3,742) 

289,214 
(1,489,905) 

250,000 

0 
18,529 

(41,253) 
9,399 

357,645 
10 1,109 
266,986 
(5 1,429) 
84,056 

143,691 
270,965 

(1 39,607) 
(5  3,s 89) 
(7 1,9 17) 

(750,246) 
57,465 

367,956 
31,836 

(100,000) 

5,029,742 3,569,547 

0 56,300 
0 (351,000) 

(87,783,193) (1 24,520,785) 
83,572,466 98,347,353 
34,328,155 32,998,864 

7 I ,272 10,968 
(12,432,343) (8,191,577) 
(2,OO 1,184) 0 

39,094 28,302 
(1,017,056) (1,003,263) 

0 436 

0 2,487,705 
0 (6,020,163) 

14,777.2 I I (6,154,8603 

30 



SALISBURY BANCORP, TNC. AND SUBSlDTARY 

C'ONSOL1DATk;D STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 3 I ,  2006,2005 and 2004 
(contin ucd) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Net (decreitsc) increasc in demand deposits, NOW and 

Net increase (decreasc) in time dcposits 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 
Principal payments on advances lkom Federal Hornc Loan Hank 
Net change in short-term advances from Federal IToine Iman Bank 
Decrcase in other borrowed funds 
Dividends paid 

savings accounts 

2006 

(5,638,393) 
3 1,957,486 
25,000,000 

(1 0,460,009) 
1,668,000 

0 
(1,734,277) 

Net cash provided by (used in) dnancing activitics 40,792.807 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents 
Cash and cash cyuivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosurcs: 
Interest paid 
Income taxes paid 
Transfcr from equipment to other assets 

Canaan National Bancorp, Inc. merger: 
Cash and cash equivalents acquircd 
Available-for-sale securities 
Fcderal Homc Loan Brink stock 
Federal Reserve Bank stock 
Net loans acquircd 
Fixed assets acquired 
Accrued interest rcceivab I e 
Other assets acquircd 
Corc deposit intangible 

Deposits assumed 
Federal Homc Loan Hank borrowings assumed 
Other borrowings assumed 
Other liabilities assumed 

Net asscts acquired 

Merger costs 

Goodwill 

1,552,808 
10,204,375 

g1.757, m 

$1 0,335,187 
864,s I2 

200s 2004 

(8,516,596) 6,920,818 
(3,029,964) (2,141,902) 
10,000,000 5,000,000 
(1,346,521) (6,140,973) 

0 (86,863) 
(1,666,046) (1,4 1 5,074) 

(16,720,945) 0 

(21.280,072) 2,136,006 

(1,473,119) (45 1,307) 
11,677.494 12.12X,801 

$10,204375 u 6 7 2 , @ 4  

$ 7,463,416 $ 5,652,960 
710,852 68 5,000 

2,815 

Thc accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

$ 2,797,124 
42,776,284 

1,29 1,200 
56,300 

54,787,421 
2,3 5 5,970 

460,550 
I ,  173,549 
1,191,279 

106,889.677 

75,613,508 
19,500,346 

86,863 
1,812.381 

97,013,098 

9,876,579 

17.028,000 

$ 7.151.421 



SALISBURY BANC‘OKP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended December 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. (Bancorp) is a Connecticut corporation that was organized on April 24, 1998 to become a 
holding company, under which Salisbury Bank and Trust Company (Bank) operates as its wholly-owncd subsidiary. 
Hancorp and the Bank arc referred to together as thc (Company). 

The Bank is a state chartered bank which was incorporatcd in I874 and is headquartered in Lakcville, Connecticut. 
The Bank operates its business from four banking offices located in Connecticut and two banking ol‘liccs located in 
Massachusetts. The Bank is engagcd principally in the busincss of attracting deposits lioiii the general public and 
investing those deposits in residential and commercial real cstatc, consutner and small business loans. The Bank 
also offers a full complement oftrust and investment services. 

As described in Note 15, on September 10, 2004 Canaan National Bancorp, Inc. incrgcd with and into thc 
Company. 

NOTE 2 - ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conl‘orm to accounting principlcs generally accepted in the 
United States of America and predominant practiccs within the banking industry. The consolidatcd financial 
statements werc prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The significant accounting policies are suinniarized 
bclow to assist the reader in better understanding the consolidated linrincial statements and other data contained 
Iierciii. 

USE OF ESTTMATES: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America reyuircs inanagernent to makc cstimates and assumptions that affect the reportcd 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosurc of contingent assets and liabilities at  the date of the 
financial statements and the reportcd amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could diI‘fer from the estimates. 

BASTS OF PRESENTATION: 

The consolidated financial statcmcnts include the accounts of the Bancorp and its wholly-owncd 
subsidiary, the Rank, and the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, SBT Rcalty, Inc., and SBT Mortgage 
Servicc Corporation (the “PIC”). SBT Rcalty, Tnc. holds and manages bank owned real estate situated in 
New York statc. The PIC operates as a passive invcstmcnt company and scrvices residential mortgages. 
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash 011 hand, cash items, due froin 
banks, intcrest bearing demand deposits with other banks, money market mutual funds and federal funds 
sold. 

Cash and due froin banks as of Deccinbcr 31, 2006 and 2005 includes $650,000 and $649,000, 
respcctively, which is subject to withdrawals and usage restrictions to satisry the reserve requirciiicnts of 
the Federal Reserve Hoard. 



SECURLTJES: 

Investments in debt securities arc adjustcd for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts so as to 
approximate the interest method. Gains or losses on sales of investment securities are colllputcd on a 
specific identification basis. 

The Company classifies debt and equity securities into onc of three categories: held-to-maturity, available- 
for-sale or trading. These security classifications may be modified after acquisition only under certain 
specificd conditions. In general, securities inay be classified as held-to-maturity only if the Company has the 
positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Trading securities are defined as those bought and held 
principally for the purpose of selling them in thc near term. All other securities must be classified as 
avai lable-for-sale. 

-- Held-tomaturity securities are cmied at amortized cost in the consolidated balance sheets. 
Unrealized holding gains and losses are not included in earnings or in a separate component of 
capital. They arc inerely disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

-- Available-for-salc securities arc carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets. 
Unrealized holding gains and losses are not included in earnings but are reported as a nct 
amount (less expccted tax) in a separate component of capital until realized. 

-- Trading securities are carried at fair valuc on the consolidated balance sheets. Unrealized 
holding gains and losses for trading securities arc included in earnings. During the thrcc years 
ended Dcceinber 3 1,2006 the Coinpany did not classify any securities as trading. 

Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and availablc-lbr-sale securities below their cost that are 
deemed to bc other than temporary are rcflected in earnings as realized losses. 

LOANS: 

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold until maturity or payoff; are reported at 
their outstanding principal balances adjusted for any charge-o ffs, thc allowance for loan losses and any 
deferred fees or costs on originated loans or unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. 

Jntcrest on loans is rccognized on a simple interest basis. 

Residential real estate loans are gencrally placed on nonaccrual status when reaching 90 days past due or in 
the process of foreclosure. Lines of credit secured by real estatc 90 days past due or in the process of 
foreclosure arc placed on nonaccrual status. Secured consumer loans are written down to realizable value 
and unsecured consumer loans are charged-off' upon reaching 120 or 180 days past due depending on the 
type of loan. Coinmercial real estatc loans and commercial business 10x1s and leases which are 90 days or 
more past due are generally placed on nonaccrual status, unless sccured by sufficient cash or other assets 
immediately convertible to cash. When a loan has been placed on nonaccrual status, previously accrued 
and uncollected interest is reversed against interest on loans. A loan can be returned to accrual status when 
collectibility of principal is reasonably assured and the loan has performed Cor a period of time, gencrally 
six months. 

Cash receipts of intcrcst income on impaired loans are credited to principal to thc extent nccessary to 
eliminate doubt as to the collectibility of the net carrying ainount of the loan. Some or all of the cash 
receipts of interest income on impaired loans is recognized as interest income i 1' the remaining net carrying 
aiiiount 01' the loan is deeincd to be fiilly collectible. Whcn recognition of interest income on  an iinpaircd 
loan on a cash basis is appropriatc, the amount of incoine that is recogniLed is limited to that which would 
have been accrued on the net carrying amount of'the loan at the contractual interest rate. Any cash intercst 
payments received in excess of the limit and not applied to reduce the net carrying ainount of thc loan arc 
recorded as recoveries of charge-offs until the chargc-offs are fully recovered. 



ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES: 

1 34 

Thc allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision 
for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses arc charged against the allowance when management 
believes the uncollectibility of a loan balancc is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited lo 
the allowance. 

The allowancc for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by iiianagemcnt and is based upon 
management's periodic review of thc collectibility of thc loans in light of historical experience, the nature 
and volume of the loan portfolio, advcrse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, the 
estimated valuc of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is 
inherently subjective as it requires estimates that arc susccptible to significant revision as more information 
becomes available. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and evcnts, it is probable that the Bank 
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the 
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by managcinent in determining impairment 
include payment status, collatcral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest 
paymcnts when due. Loans that cxpericnce insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally 
are not classified as impaired. Management determines thc significance of payment dclays and payment 
shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan 
and [he borrower, including thc length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior paymcnt 
rccord, and thc amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. lmpairmcnt is 
measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value ol' 
expccted future cash flows discountcd at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainablc market 
price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dcpendcnt. The Bank docs not separately 
identify individual consumer and residential loans for iinpairmcnt disclosures, but instead cvaluatcs smaller 
groups of hoinogcneous loans collectivcly for impairment, 

PREMISES AND RQUIPMENT: 

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accuinulatcd depreciation and amortization. Cost and 
related allowances for depreciation and arnortization of premiscs and equipment retired or otherwise 
disposed of are removed from the respective accounts with any gain or loss included in income or expense. 
Depreciation and amortization arc calculated principally on the straight-line method over thc estimated 
useful livcs of the assets. Estimated lives are 3 to 99 years for buildings and 2 to 20 years for furniture and 
equipmcnt. 

OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNKD ANI) TN-SUBSTANCE FORECLOSUKES: 

Other real estatc owned includes properties acquired through foreclosure and properties classified as in- 
substance foreclosures in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 1 5 ,  
"Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for Troubled Debt Restructuring." These properties are carried at 
the lower of cost or estimated fair value less estimated costs to sell. Any writcdown from cost to estimated 
fair value required at the time of Ibreclosure or classification as in-substance foreclosure is charged to the 
allowancc for loan losscs. Expcnses incurred in connection with maintaining these assets and subsequent 
writcdowns are included in other expense. 

In accordance with SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment 01' a Loan," the Bank 
classiiies loans as in-substance repossesscd or foreclosed if the Bank or its subsidiarics receives physical 
possession of the debtor's a w l s  regardless of whethcr formal foreclosure proceedings take place. As of 
Dccember 3 1,2006 and Dccembcr 3 1,2005, the Coinpany does not have any other rcal estatc owned. 

ADVERTISING : 

The Rank directly expenses costs associated with advertising as they are incurred. 



" I  
JNCOME TAXES: 

The Company recognizes income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary differences between the accounting basis and the 
tax basis of  the Company's assets and liabilities at tax rates expected to be in effect when the amounts 
related to such temporary differences are realized or settled. 

FATR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: 

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,'' requires that the Company 
disclose estimated fair value for its financial instruments. Fair value mcthods and assumptions used by the 
Company in estimating its fair value disclosures are as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
equivalents approximate those asscts' fair values. 

The carrying amounts reported in  the balance shccts for cash and cash 

Securities (including mortgage-backed securities): Fair values for securities arc bascd on quoted market 
prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market 
prices of comparable instruments. 

Loans held-for-sale: Fair values of mortgage loans held-for-sale are based on commitments on hand from 
invcstors or prevailing market prices. 

Loans receivable: For variable-rate loans that reprice froquently and with no significant change in credit 
risk, fair values arc bascd on carrying values. The fair values for other loans are estimated using 
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest YdtCS currently being offered for loans with similar terms to 
borrowers of similar credit quality. 

Accrued interest receivable: 
valuc. 

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair 

Deposit liabilities: The fair values discloscd for interest and non-interest checking, passbook savings and 
money market accounts arc, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date 
(i.e., their carrying amounts). Fair values for tixed-rate certificates of' deposit arc estimated using a 
discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currcntly being offercd on certificates lo a 
schedulc of aggregatcd expected monthly maturities on time deposits. 

Federal Homc Loan Bank Advances: Fair values for Federal Home Loan Bank advanccs arc estimated 
using a discounted cash flow technique that applies intcrest rates currently being offered on advances to a 
schedule of aggregated expected monthly malurities on Federal IIomc Loan Bank advances. 

Due to broker: The carrying amount or due to broker approximales its fair value. 

Off-balancc sheet instruments: The fair valuc of commitments to originate loans is estimated using thc fees 
currently chargcd to enter similar agreemcnts, taking into account the remaining terms of thc agrecinents 
and the present crcditworlhiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan cominitmcnts and the 
unadvanccd portion of loans, fair valuc also coiisidcrs thc differcnce bctween current levels of interest rates 
and the committed rates. The fair valuc of letters of credit is bascd OJI fees currently chargcd for similar 
agreemcnts or on thc estimated cost to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligation with the 
countcrpartics at the reporting date. 

STOCK BASED COMPENSATION: 

Bancorp has a stock-based plan to compensate non-employeo directors for their serviccs. This plan is morc 
fully described in Note 14. Compensation cost for these scrvices is reflected in net incoinc in an amount 
cyual to the fair valuc on the date of issuance of thc sharcs of Hancorp coimon stock issued to the directors. 



EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS): 

Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the 
weighted-average number ol‘ comnioii shares outstanding for the period. Weighted average coniinon 
shares outstanding were 1,683,893 in 2006, 1,683,031 in 2005 and 1,503,373 in 2004. Diluted EPS 
reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stuck werc 
exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in 
the earnings of the cntity. Diluted EPS is not presented because there were no common stock equivalents 
in the thrcc year period ended Decembcr 3 1, 2006. 

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS: 

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASR) issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting 
for Certain Hybrid Tnstruments“ (SFAS No. 155j, which permits, but docs not require, fair value 
accounting for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivativc that would otherwise 
require bifurcation in accordance with SFAS 1 33 .  The stateincnt also subjects beneficial interests issued 
by securitiLation vehicles to the requirements of‘ SFAS No. 133. The statement is effective as of January 1, 
2007. The adoption OS SFAS No. 155 is not expected to have a inatcrial iinpact on the Company’s 
hancial condition and rcsults of operations. 

In March 2006, the FASB issued WAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets- an 
amcndmenl of FASB Statement No. 140” (SFAS No. 1%). SFAS No. 156 requires an entity to recogniLc 
a servicing asset or servicing liability each time it undertakes an obligation to service a financial asset by 
entering into a servicing contract in specilic situations. Additionally, the servicing asset or servicing 
liability shall be initially measured at fair value; however, an entity may elect the “amortization method’ or 
“fair value method” for subsequcnt balance sheet reporting periods. SFAS No. 156 is effective as of an 
entity’s lirst fiscal year beginning after September 15, 2006. Early adoption is permitted as of the 
beginning OS an entity’s fiscal ycar, provided the cntity has not yct issued linancial statements, including 
intcrim financial statements, Ibr any period of that fiscal year. The Company does not expect the adoption 
of this statement to have a material iinpact on its financial condition, results ofopcrations or cash ilows. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued WAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS No. 157). SFAS 
No. IS7 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value undcr generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP j and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. I57 
retains the exchange price notion and clarifies that the exchange price is the price that would be received 
for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market 
pitrticipaiits on the measurement date. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements for the year hegiiming on January 1, 2008, with earlier adoption permitted. Manageinent is 
currently evaluating the effcct of SFAS No. 157 on the Company’s financial condition and results 01’ 
operations. 
The Company does not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material iinpact on its tinancia1 
condition and results of opcrations. 

In Septeinber 2006, the FASH issued SFAS No. 158, “Employer’s Accounting for Delyned Bencfit Pension 
and other Postretireincnt Plans - an amendment of FASR Statements No 87, XX, 106 and 132(R)” (SFAS 
No. 1%). SFAS No. IS8 requires 1) the recognition of an asset or liability for the over-funded or under- 
funded status of a defined benefit plan, 2) the recognition of actuarial gains and losses and prior service 
costs and credits in other coniprchensivc income, 3 j measurement of plan assets and benet3 obligations as 
of the cmploycr’s balance sheet date, rather than at interim measuremcnt dates as currently allowed, and 4) 
disclosurc of additional inforniation concurning actuarial gains and losses and prior servicc costs and 
credits rccognimd in other coniprehensive income. This stateincnt is effective for financial statements with 
fiscal years ending after Dccember 15, 2006. The adoplion of this Stateincnt did not have a material 
iinpact on the Company’s financial position, results of opcrations, or cash flows. 
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NOTE 3 - WVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets according to management’s intent. 
The amortized cost of securities and their approximate fair values are as follows as of December 31 : 

Available-for-salc securities: 
Deceinbcr 3 I ,  2006: 

Equity securities 
U.S. government agencies preferred stock 
Debt securities issued by thc U S .  Treasury 

and other U. S. government corporations 
and agcncies 

United States and political subdivisions 
of the statcs 

Dcbt securities issued by states ofthe 

Money market mutual funds 
Mortgage-backed securities 

Money market mutual funds included in 
cash and cash cquivalents 

Decembcr 31,2005: 
Equity securitics 
U.S. government agcncies preferred stock 
Debt securities issued by the US. Treasury 

and other U. S. govcmment corporations 
and agencies 

United Statcs and political subdivisions 
of the states 

Debt securities issued by states of the 

Money markct mutual funds 
Mortgage-backcd securities 

Money markct mutual funds included in 
cash and cash equivalents 

Held-to-maturity securitics: 
Decembcr 3 I ,  2006: 

Mortgage-backed sccurities 

December 3 1,2005: 
Mortgage-backed sccurities 

Amortized Gross 
cost Unrealized 
Basis Gains 

$ 3,031 $ 178,395 
2,975,000 0 

55,323,358 23,343 

44,891,148 379,553 
1,199,881 0 

55,103,530 I9 1,698 
7 7 2,9 8 9 159,495,948 

$ 3,031 $ 145,058 
13,292,628 99,660 

52,390,332 0 

4 l,SSO,0 I O  75,980 
1,119,724 0 

42.3 12,984 15,325 
150,668,709 336,023 

(1,119.724) 
$149%98S $331,.023 

K. 74,931 LO 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

$ 0 
462,900 

1,200,395 

34,667 
0 

878,547 
2,576,509 

L2,576.509 

$ 0 
946,300 

1,874,694 

293,765 
0 

I . I  61,952 
4,276,7 1 1 

$4.276.71 1 

$_ 113. 

K. 0- 

Fair 
Value 

$ 181,426 
2,512,100 

54,146,306 

45,236,034 
1,199,881 

54,416,681 
157,692,428 

(1,199,881) 
$156,492,547 

$ 148,089 
12,445,988 

50,s 15,638 

4 1,332,225 
1, I 19,724 

4 1 ~ 166,357 
146,728,021 

( I , ]  19.724) 
$145.608.297 

$ -74,818 

9; 147,202 



n 

The scheduled maturities of debt securities were as follows as 
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Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 
Mortgage-backed securities 

t‘ December 3 I ,  2006: 

Available-For-Sale 

Fair 
Value 

$ 17,966,906 
X 1,415,434 
54,416.681 

U 7 9 9 A 2 1  _ -  

Held-To-Maturity 

c o s t  Fair 
Basis Value 

$ 0 $ 0 
0 0 

74.93 1 74.8 18 
s lQ931 $_ 74.8E 

Amortized 

During 2006, proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities amounted to $62,356,620. Gross realized gains and 
gross realized losses on thosc sales amounted to $724,286 and $206,960, respectively. During 2005, proceeds from 
sales of available-for-salc securities amounted to $83,572,466. Gross rcalized gains and gross realized losses on thosc 
sales amounted to $1,427,881 and $35,657, respectivcly. During 2004, proceeds from sales of available-for-sale 
securities amounted to $98,347,353. Gross reali7ed gains and gross realiied losses on those sales amounted to 
$1,577,110 and $87,205, respectively. The tax provision applicable to thesc net rcalized gains amounted to $175,891, 
$473,356 and $580,3 18, respcctively. In 2005, it write down of $182,500 was recorded on an available-for-salc 
security as management had deemcd this particular security to be other than temporarily impaired. 

There were no securities of issuers whose aggregate carrying amount exceeded 10% ol’sharcholders’ equity as of 
December 3 I ,  2006. 

Total carrying amounts of $55,251,654 and $38,612,787 of debt sccuritics were pledged to secure Federal Home 
Loan Bank advances, public deposits, treasury tax and loan and for other purposes as requircd by law as of 
December 3 1,2006 and 2005, respectively. 

The aggregate fair value and unrcalized losses of securities that have been in a continuous unrealiLed loss position 
for less than twelve months and for twelve months or more, and are temporarily impaired, are as follows as of 
December 3 1,2006: 

Less than 12 Months 
Fair Unrcalized 

Value Losses 
U.S. governmcnt agencies prcfcrred 

Deht securities issued by the U.S. 
stock $ 0 s  0 

Treasury and other U. S. government 
corporations and agencics 792,581 57.553 

subdivisions ofthe statcs 1,809,175 12,100 

Debt securities issued by states ofthe 
United States and political 

Mortgage-backed sccurities 13,486,446 54,270 
Total temporarily impaired securities %Ic.oSs,ZaZ $ 

12 Months or Longer 
Fair Unrealized 
Value Losscs 

$ 2,512,100 $ 462,900 

49,l S9,124 I ,142,X42 

2,094,013 22,567 
27.940.134 824.390 

W L r n  

Totdl 
Fair Unrealized 
Value Losscs 

$ 2,512,100 $ 462,900 

49,95 1,705 1,200,395 

3,903,188 34,667 
41,426.580 878,660 

$ 0 7 . 7 9 3 s  - 



Securities exhibiting unrealized losses are analyzed to dcterminc that the impairments are not other-than-temporary 
and the following information is considered. U.S.  Government securities are backed by the full faith and credit of 
the United States and therefore bear no credit risk. U.S. Government agencies securities, which have a significant 
impact in financial markets, have minimal crcdit risk. All investments maintain a credit rating of at least investment 
grade by one of the nationally recognizcd rating agencies. Mortgage-backed securities are issued by federal 
government agencics or by private issuers with minimum security ratings of AAA. The unrealized losses in the 
above table are attributable to changes in market interest ratcs. As Company rnanagemcnt has the ability to hold 
securities until anticipated rccovery to cost basis occurs, no declines are dcclned to bc other than temporary. 

NOTE 4 - LOANS 

Loans consisted of the following as of December 3 1 : 

Commercial, tinancial and agricultural 
Real estate - construction and land devclopinent 
Real estate - residential 
Real cstate - commercial 
Consumcr 
Term federal funds 
Other 

Deferrcd costs, nct 
Unearned income 
Allowance for loan losses 

Net loans 

2006 
$ 16,464,762 

2 1,169,024 
145,394,844 
50,859,332 
8,815,789 

69,367 
254,773,ll 8 

168,573 

(2,474,118) 
$252,464.43Q 

12,000,000 

(3, J 43) 

2005 
$ 15,354,328 

1 8,8 14,408 
135,618,937 
40,889,007 
7,899,912 

0 
46,783 

21 8,623,375 
0 

(8,056) 
(2,626,170) 

$215,989,149 

Certain directors and executive officers of the Company and companies in which they have significant ownership 
interest were customers of the Bank during 2006. Total loans to such persons and their companies amountcd to 
$681,984 as of Decernbcr 31, 2006. During 2006, principal advances of $366,942 were made and repayments 
totaled $4 I 1,177. 

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows for the years ended December 3 I 

Balance at beginning of period 
(Benefit) provision for loan losses 
Recoverics of loans previously charged of?. 
Loans charged off 
Allowance related to business combination 
Balance at end of period 

2006 2005 2004 
$2,626,170 $2,S I 1,546 $1,664,274 

(87,488) 210,000 250,000 
67,054 39,094 28,302 

(1 3 1,6 18) (134,470) (69,742) 
0 0 638.712 

$2.474,118 $ 2 . 6 2 U  $2.5 1 1.546 

The following table sets forth information regarding nonaccrual loans and accruing loans 90 days or more overduc 
as of December 3 1 : 

2006 2005 

Total nonaccrual loans $x86:377 $693,226 

Accruing loans which arc 90 days or more overdue $525 $28.663 



Information about loans that meet the definition of :m impaired loan in SFAS No. 1 14 is as follows as ol' 
December 3 1 : 

2006 
Recorded 
Tiivcstiiient 
1u Impaired 
Loans 

$ 0 Loans for whch there is a related allowance for credit losses 

1,oans Ibr which there is no related allowance li)r credit losses 0 

Totals 

Average rccorded investment in impaircd loans during tlie 
year ended December 3 1 $-. 0 

Related amount of interest incomc recognized during the timc, 
in thc year ended December 3 1, that the loans were impaired 

lotal recognized $ 4  

accounting -. s . 0  
Amount recognized using a cash-basis method of 

Related 
Allowance 
For Credit 
Losses 

$0 

0 - 

@ 

2005 
Recorded Kelated 
Investinent A 1 1 ow aiice 
In Impired For Credit 
Loans T .osscs 

$ 0  $0 

0 0 

$73.133 

$&ti65 

$ 6,665 

In 2006, 2005 and 2004 thc Bank capitalized mortgage servicing rights totaling $147,353, $73,849 arid $112,187, 
respcctivcly, and amortized $225,732, $164,178 and $66,0 19, respectively. The balance of capitalized rnortgagc 
servicing rights included in other assets at December 3 1, 2006 arid 2005 was $336,185 and $41 4,900, respectively. 
On Septcmbcr 10, 2004 the Bank acquircd mortgage servicing rights of' $392,256, exclusive of $2,388 in valuation 
allowance, through the acquisition of Canaan Natioilal Bancorp, Inc. 

Following is an analysis of the aggrcgatc changes in the valuation allowarice for mortgage servicing rights for tlie 
years ended December 3 1 : 

Balance, beginning or year 
Additions 
Reductions 
Balance, cnd oT year 

2006 2005 

13,392 16,077 
( 1  9,056) (22,93 5) 

$ 1,115 $ 7,973 

$ 1-.451 $1,115 

The fair value of thc mortgage servicing rights was $671,145 and $525,209 as ol' December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respcctivcly . 

Loans scrviccd for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balailcc shccts. The unpaid priiicipal 
balance of niortgttge and other loans serviced for othcrs was $49,117,195 and $49,567,72 1 at December 3 1, 2006 
and 2005, respectively. 



NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

The following is a summary of premiscs and equipment as of Decembcr 3 1 : 

Land 
Buildings 
Furniture and equipment 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

2006 2005 
$ 775,844 $ 775,844 

5,721,601 5,629,513 
2,786.494 2,1596~5 10 
9,283,939 9,101,867 

(3,148,393) (2,649,888) 
$6,125,546 $6.45 1,979 

NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS 

The aggregatc amount of time deposit accounts in denominations of $100,000 or more as of Decembcr 3 I ,  2006 and 
2005 was $55,3 15,326 and $27,662,727, respectively. 

The aggrcgate amount of brokered tiine dcposits as of Dccember 31, 2006 and 2005 was $19,538,000 and $0, 
respectively. Brokered time dcposits are not included in time dcposit accounts in dcnorninations of $ I  00,000 or 
more above. 

For time dcposits as of December 3 1,2006, thc scheduled maturities for years endcd December 3 I arc as follows: 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

$ 98,395,827 
10,090,092 
2,606,025 
2,105,190 
7,164.220 

- %120.36= 

Certain directors and cxccutive officers of the Company and companies in which they have a significant ownership 
interest werc customers of thc Bank during 2006. Total deposits of such persons mid their companies amounted to 
$1,372,156 and $1,739,823 as of Deceinbcr 31,2006 and 2005, respectively. 

NOTE 7 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES 

Advances consist of funds borrowed froin the Federal Hoine Loan Rank of Boston (FHLB). 

Maturities of advances froin the FHLB for the five fiscal ycars ending after Dcccmber 3 1, 2006, and thereafter, arc 
summarized as follows: 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
Thereafter 
Fair value adjustment 

$16,589,044 
1 1,577,699 

I ,320,213 
2 1,202,309 
10,794,029 
25,295,450 

314,658 
$x7,093,4Q 



As of December 31, 2006, the following advanccs from the FHLB wcrc redeemable at par at the option of the FHLB: 

4/27/2009 
4/27/2009 

2/8/20 1 0 
2/28/20 1 1 

12/15/2010 
1 2/ 16/20 1 3 
12/20/20 10 

3/1/2011 

1 /26/2007 and quarlcrly therealtcr 
1/26/2007 and quarterly thereafter 
2/7/2007 and quarlcrly thereafter 

2/26/2007 and quarterly thereafter 
3/15/2007 and quarterly thereafter 
311 512007 and quartcrly thercafter 
3/20/2007 and quarterly thereafter 

31 1/2007 and quarterly thereafter 

MATURLTY DATE OPTIONAL REDEMPTION DATE AMOUNT 
1 /25/20 10 1/25/2007 and quarterly thereafter $19,000,000 

500,000 
500,000 
600,000 

0,000,000 
800,000 

0,000,000 
500,000 
500,000 

1211 2/20 16 1211 212007 and quarterly thereaftcr 15,000,000 

The advances also include $400,000 borrowcd in 2002 at 4.31% which is a Knock-out Advance with a Strikc Rate 
of 7% If thc three month LIBOR rate cxceeds the Strikc Rate of 7% on January 8, 2007 and quarterly therealtcr, 
the FHLB will require that this borrowing bccome duc immediately upon the Strike Date as defined in the contract. 
As of December 3 I ,  2006, the three month LIBOR was 5.36%. Thc maturity date is April 9, 2007. 

Amortizing advanccs are being repaid in equal monthly payments and are being amortized from the date of the 
advance to the maturity date on a direct reduction basis. 

Borrowings from the FHLB are securcd by 3 blanket lien on qualified collateral, consisting primarily of loans with 
lirst mortgages secured by one to four family properties, certain unencumbered investment securities and other 
qualified assets, 

At December 3 1, 2006, the intercst rates on FHLR advances rangcd from 2.66 perccnt to 6.30 perccnt. At December 3 1, 
2006, the wcighted average interest rate on FHLB advances was 4.97 percent. 

NOTE R - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The Bank has an insured noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan available to employees eligible as to age 
and length of service. Benefits are based on a covered employee's final average compcnsation, primary social 
security benefit arid credited scrvice. The Bank inakcs annual contributions which meet the Employec Retirement 
In come S ocurity Act mini mum fundi ng rcqu ireincn ts . 

In 2006 the plan was amended, effective September 1, 2006, to providc that cinployecs hired or rehired on or after 
Septeinbcr 1,2006 are not eligible to participate in the plan. 



‘I’hc following tables set forth information about the plan as of December 3 1 and the years then ended, using a 
measurement date of Ileccmnber 3 I:  

Change in projectcd benefit obligation: 
Rcncfit obligation at beginning of ycar 
Adjustment 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 

Rciiclit obligation at cnd of year 

Change in plan assets: 
Plan assets at estimakd fair value at bcginning of year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Contributions 
Henefits paid 

Fair valuc of plan assets at end of ycar 

Funded status 
Unrccognized net loss 
Unrecognixcd prior service cost 
Unamortized net obligation cxisting at date of adoption of 

Additional minimum liability 
SFAS No. 87 

(Fundcd status) (accrued) prepaid benefit cost, 
respectively, includcd in the balance sheet 

2006 

$ 5,405,706 
0 

(128,601 ) 
430,035 
3 18,310 
(87,521) 

6,027.929 

3,370,954 
392,23 1 

1,341,000 
(X7.521) 

5,016.664 

(1,O I 1,265) 
NIA 
NIA 

NIA 
NIA 

x l  u 2 6 5 )  

2005 

$4,108,971 
0 

783,390 
466,570 
200,825 

(1 54,050) 
5,495,706 

2,839,5 1 5 
94,489 

59 1,000 
(1 54,050) 

3,370,954 

(2,124,752) 
2,330,482 

2,696 

0 
(448,005) 

%(23 9 ~ 5 79) 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other coinprchcnsive loss, befvrc tax cffect, consist of: 

IJnrecognized net loss 
Unrecognizcd prior service cost 

2004 

932,762,015 
960,236 
(12,650) 
2593 13 
220,533 
(80,676) 

4,108,97 1 

1,787,563 
140,306 
992,322 
(80,676) 

2,839.5 1 5 

(1,269,456) 
1,503,149 

3,589 

2,771 
0 

$ 240:053 

Dcccmber 3 I ,  2006 
$2,016,054 

1,803 
$2,017.857 

The $960,236 adjustnient made to the 2004 beginning of ycar projected benefit obligation is a result o f a  change in 
calculation methodology frvm the prior actuary to thc current actuary, hircd by the Bank in April 2004, including 
the effect of reflccting salary increases in the determination of liabilities. The adjustmcnt also includes liability 
gains and losses due to demographic experience. Nct pcriodic cost for thc ycar ended Decembcr 3 I ,  2004 of 
$490,190 includes additional amortization of the transition obligation and additional amortization of prior service 
cost in the amounts of $46,921 and $89,172, respcclively, as a result of this adjustment. Net income for the year 
ended Dcccmber 3 I ,  2004 was rcduccd by $83,085, net vf tax benefit of $53,008, rclated to this adjustmcnl. 

The following table illustrates thc incremental effect of applying SFAS No. 158 on individual line items in the balance 
shect as of December 3 1,2006. 

Rcforc After 
Application Application 

of of 
SFAS No. 158 Adiustmcnts SFAS No. 158 

Prepaid benefit cost $ 1,006,592 $(1,006,592) $ 0 
Dcfcwcd income tax asset 0 5,635 5,635 
Total Asscts 451,340,627 (1,000,957) 450,339,670 
Liability for pension benefits 0 1 ,O I 1,265 1,011,265 

Total liahililics 405,659,660 330,829 405,990,489 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,190,323) (1,331,786) (2,522,109) 
Total shareholdcrs’ cyuity 45,680,967 (1,33 1,786) 44,349,18 1 

Deferred incomc tax liability (680,436) 680,436 0 



The accumulated benefit obligation for the plan was $4,179,551 and $3,610,533 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
rcspectively. 

Amounts recognized in the balmcc sheets as ol’neceniber 3 1,2005 consist of: 

Accrued benefit cost $ (239,579) 
Additional minimum liability (448,005) 
lntangiblc asset 2,696 
Accuinulated other comprehensive loss 445,309 

Net amount recognized $rnX5_19) 

The discount ralc used in determining the actuarial present value of the projected benefit obligdtion was 6.0% for 
2006 and 2005. Tlic rate of increase in future compensation levels was based on the following gradcd table for 
2006 and 2005: 

AGE 
25 
35 
45 
55 
65 

Coniponents of net periodic cost are as follows for the years ended Deccmber 3 I : 

Servicc cost 
Interest cost on benefit obligation 
Expected return on assets 
Ainortization of transition obligalion 
Amortization of prior service cost 
Recognizcd net loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

2006 
$430,035 

318,310 

0 
893 

89,194 
542,834 

(295,598) 

Other changes in plan asscts and benefit obligations recognized in other 

Net actuarial loss 2,016,054 
Prior sorvicc cost 1.803 
Total recognized in other coinprehetisivc loss 2,017,857 
Total recognized in net periodic cost and other comprehensive loss $2,540,691 

coinprehensive loss: 

RATE 
4.75% 
4.25% 
3.75% 
3.25%) 
3 .OO% 

2005 
$466,570 
290,825 

(236,062) 
2,771 

893 
97,630 

622,627 

0 
0 
0 

- $6_22,621 

2004 
$2593 13 
220,533 

( 1  96,448) 
55,593 
90,064 
60,935 

400.190 

0 
0 
0 

$*U9 

Thc estimated net loss and prior service cost that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into 
nct periodic benefit cost over the year ended December 3 1,2007 are $77, I01 and $893, respectively. 

The discount mte used to determine the net pcriodic benefit cost was 6.00% !‘or 2006, 2005 and 2004; and the 
expected return on plan assets was 7.50% for 2006 and 7.50?4 Sor 2005 and 7.25% for 2004. 

The graded table was also used for the rate of cornpensation increase in determining the net periodic benefit cost in 
2006,2005 and 2004. 

Pension expense is calculated based upon a number of actuarial assumptions, including an expected long-term rate of 
return on pension plan assets of 7.50% for 2006. In developing thc expected long-tem rate of return assumption, 
assct class return expectalions were evaluated as well as long-term infation assumptions, and historical returns bascd 
on the currcnt target asset allocations of 60% equity and 40% fixed income. The Bank regularly reviews tho assct 
allocations and periodically rebalances investments whon considcred appropriate. While all future forccasting 
contains some level of estimation error, the Bank believes that 7.50% falls within a range of reasonable long-tern1 rate 
of return expectations for pcnsion plan assets. The Bank will continue to evaluate the actuarial assumptions, including 
expccted rate of return, at least annually, and will adjust as necessary. 
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Plan Assets: 

Tlic pension plan investments are co-managed by the Trust and Investment Services division of the Bank and Bradley 
Foster and Sargent, Tnc. The investments in the plan are reviewed and approvcd by the Trust Committee. The asset 
allocation of the plan is a balanced allocation. Debt securities are timed to mature when employees arc due to retire. 
Debt seciirities are laddered for coupon and maturity. Equities are put in the plan to achieve a balanced allocation and 
to provide growth of the principal portion of the plan and to provide diversification. The Trust Committee reviews the 
policies of the plan. The prudent investor rule and applicable ElUSA regulations apply to the management of the 
funds and investment selections. 

Thc Bank’s pension plan asset allocations by asset category are as follows: 

Assct Cateriory 
Equity securities 
U.S. Government treasury and agency securities 
Corporate bonds 
Mutual funds 
Money market mutual funds 
Certificates of deposit 

Total 

December 3 I 2006 
Fair Value Percent 
$2,537,994 50.6% 

1,480,289 29.5 
23,040 0.5 

200,503 4.0 
672,228 13.4 

2.0 102,610 - 
$5,016,644 100.0% _ -  

December 3 1.2005 
Percent Fair Value 

$ 987,888 29.4% 
1,3 19,226 39.1 

23,632 0.7 
583,354 17.3 
344,620 10.2 
112,234 3.3 
w(Lp54 

There were no securities of the Bancorp and rclated parties included in plan assets as of December 3 1,2006 and 2005. 

Bascd on current data and assumptions, the following benefits are expected to be paid for each of the following five 
ycars and, in the aggregate, the five years thereafter: 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 2016 

$ 171,000 
90,000 

123,000 
205,000 
195,000 

4,260,000 

The Bank cxpects to make a contribution of $670,000 in 2007. 

The Bank adopted a 401(k) Plan effective in 2000. Under the Plan eligible participants may contribute a percentage 
of their pay, subject to IRS limitations. The Bank may make discretionary contributions to the Plan. The Bank’s 
contribution expense in the years ended Deccmber 3 1, 2006, 2005 and 2004 amounted to approximately $93,000, 
$91,212 and $60,000, respectively. Discretionary contributions vest in full after five years. 

In 2006 the 401(k) Plan was amended, effective September 1,2006, to provide that employces hired or rehired after 
September I ,  2006 are not eligible to participate in the plan. The Company will be establishing, not later than 
September 1,2007, a second 40 1 (k) Plan to provide a discretionary match to cmployecs hired or rehired, on or after 
September 1,2006 who satisfy certain eligibility requirements. 

Fourteen of the Bank’s officers have a change in control agreement (“agrcement”) with the Bank. The agreements 
provide that if, within twelve (I 2) months after a “changc-in-control” has occurred, the officer’s employment 
terminates or is reassigned under defined circumstances, then the Bank and/or its successor shall pay the officer a 
lump sum amount equal to the officer’s most recent aggrcgate base salary paid in the twelve (12) month period 
immcdiately preceding his or her termination or reassignment less amounts previously paid from the date of 
“change in control.” 
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NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES 

The components of income tax expcnse are as follows for the ycars cnded December 3 1 : 

C urrent : 
Fcderal 
State 

Deferred: 
Federal 
State 
Change in valuation allowance 

Total income tax expensc 

2006 2005 

$ 990,839 $ 986,976 
54,678 60,164 

1,045.5 17 1,047,140 

217,852 12,873 

178,566 54,400 
396.41 8 67,273 

0 0 

g.44  1 5. ~1,114,413 

Federal income tax at statutory rate 
Increase (decrease) in tax resulting from: 

Tax-exempt income 
Other items 

State tax, nct of fcderal tax bcnefit 
Change in valuation allowance 

Effectivc tax rates 

Thc reasons for the differences bctwecn thc statutory federal incomc tax rate and the effective tax rates arc 
summarized as follows for the ycars cnded December 3 1 : 2006 2005 2004 

I ncornc Income lncoine 
Y" of % of Yn of 

34.0Y" 34.0% 34.0% 

(13.6) (15.8) (18.2) 
1.2 ( .3) 0.2 
0.6 0.7 0.2 
3.1 
- 253% 

1.0 
e- 19.6% 

0.0 
16.2% 

Thc Company had gross deferred tax assets and gross deferred tax liabilities as follows as of Dccernber 3 1 : 

Deferrcd tax assets: 
Allowance for loan losscs 
Intercst on non-pcrfonning loans 
Accrued deferred compensation 
Post-retirement bciiefits 
Other real estate owned property writedown 
Capital loss carryforward 
Mark to market purchasc accounting adjustments 
Preferrcd stock amortization 
SFAS No. 158 pension liability 
Minimum pension liability 
Net unrealized holding loss on available-for-salc securities 

Gross deferred tax assets 
Valuation allowance 

Deferrcd tax liabilities: 
Deferred loan costs, net 
Core dcposit intangible asset 
Accelerated depreciation 
Discount accretion 
Mortgage servicing rights 
Prepaid pension 

Net dcferrcd tax asset 
Gross deferred tax liabilities 

2006 

$ 619,233 
15,402 
26,288 
22,440 
22,101 

398,191 
8,373 

0 
686,07 1 

0 
613,197 

2,411,296 
(260,1661 

2,151,130 

(57,3 15) 
(646,483) 
(985,152) 

0 
( I  14,304) 
(342,24 1) 

(2,145,495) 
$-5,635 

2005 

$ 704,341 
8,385 

22,429 
27,X80 
22,101 
89,250 

323,515 
3,991 

0 
151,405 

1.339334 
2,693,13 1 

(81,600) 
2,611,531 

0 
(633,725) 
(9983 15) 

(1 89) 
(1 41,067) 
(244,011) 

(2,017,507) 
$594.024 

2004 

$63 1,007 
250 

63 1.257 

133,788 
1 1,903 

0 
143.691 

$774.948 
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A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the gross deferred tax asset 
will not be realized. Management has determined that certain defcrred tax assets require a valuation allowance. 

As of Dccember 3 1,2006, the Company had no operating loss and tax credit carryovers for tax purposes. 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITJES 

The Rank entered into an agreement with a third party in which the third party is to provide the Bank with account 
processing services and other miscellaneous services. IJnder the agreement, the Bank is obligated to pay monthly 
processing I‘ces through August 5,2010. Jn the event the Bank chooses to cancel the agreement prior to the end of 
the contract term a lump sum termination fee will have to be paid. The fee shall be calculated as the avcrage 
monthly billing, exclusive of pass through costs for the past twelve months, inidtiplied by the number of months and 
any portion of’a month remaining in the contract term. 

NOTE 1 I I FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Bank is a party lo financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the 
financing necds of its customers. These financial instruments include corninitments to originrztc loans, standby 
letters of credit and unadvanced funds on loans. The instruments involve, to varying dcgrees, clcinents of credit risk 
in excess of the amount recognized in the balancc sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the 
extent of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments. 

The Bank‘s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the othcr party to the financial instrument for 
loan commitments and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments. The 
Bank uses the same credit policics in making commitments and conditional obligations as it docs for on-balance 
sheet instmncnls. 

Commitments to originatc loans are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of. any condition 
established in the contract. Commitments gencrally have tixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may 
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expccted to expire without being drawn upon, the total 
commitment mounts do not necessarily represent future cash requircinents. The Bank cvaluates each customcr’s 
creditworthincss on a casc-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if dccmed neccssary by the Bank upon 
cxtcnsion of. credit, is based on management‘s credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held varies, but may 
includo secured interests in mortgages, accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment and income 
producing properties. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitmcnts issued by the Hank to guarantee the performance by a 
customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is cssentially the same as that involvcd 
in extending loan facilities to customers. As of December 3 1,2006 and 2005, the maxiinurn potential amounl of the 
Bank’s obligation was $1 2,800 and $21,900, respectively, for financial and standby letters ol‘ credit. The Bank’s 
outstanding letters of credit gencrally have a term of less than one year. If a letter of credit is drawn upon, the Bank 
may seek recourse through the customer’s underlying line of credit. Jf the customer’s linc of credit is also in 
dehult, the Rank may takc possession ofthe collateral, if any, securing the line of crcdit. 

The estimated fair values of the Rank’s financial instruments, all of which are held or issued Cor purposcs other than 
trading, are as follows as of December 3 1 : 

Financial assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Available-for-sale securities 
H eld-lomaturity securities 
Federal Home Loan Rank stock 
Loans held-for-sale 
Loans, net 
Accrued interest receivable 

2006 2005 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

$ 13,757,183 $ 11,757,183 $ 10,204,375 .R 10,204,375 
156,492,547 156,492,547 145,608,297 145,608,297 

74,93 1 74,s I8 146,856 147,202 
4,663,700 4,663,700 5,413,200 5,413,200 

304,000 307,07 1 0 0 
252,464,430 250,3 12,089 21 5,989,149 215,652,000 

2,362,924 2,483,547 2,483,547 2,362,924 



Financial liabilities: 
Deposits 
FHLB advances 
Due to broker 

2006 2005 
Carrying 
Amount Value Amount Value 

$ 313,5X6,281 $ 313,560,974 $ 287,271,202 $ 287,598,000 
87,093,402 87,478,836 7 1,015,6 14 71,362,000 

Fair Carrying Fair 

1,579,611 1,579,611 0 0 

The carrying amounts of financial instruments shown in the above table are included in the consolidated balance 
sheets under the indicated captions. Accounting policies rebated to financial instruments are described in Note 2. 

The amounts of financial instrument liabilities with off-balance sheet credit risk are as follows as of December 31 

Commitments to originate loans 
Standby letters of credit 
Unadvanced portions of loans: 

Home equity 
Commercial lines of credit 
Construction 
Consumer 

2006 
$10,540,525 

12,800 

26,599,79 I 
8,642,393 
7,322,201 
6,928.3 13 

$6L04&!023 

2005 
$ 3,242,137 

2 1,900 

24,847,998 
8,495,283 
4,52 1,483 
6,837,017 

$47.965.818 - 

There is no material differencc between the notional amounts and the estimated fair valucs of the off-balance sheet 
liabilities. 

NOTE 12 - STGNTFlCANT GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Most of the Bank's business activity is with customers located in northwestern Connecticut and nearby New York 
and Massachusetts towns. Therc arc no concentrations of credit to bowowcrs that have similar economic 
characteristics. The inajority of the Bank's loan portfolio is coinprised 01' loans collateralized by rcal estatc located 
in northwestern Connecticut and nearby New York and Massachusctts towns. 

NOTE 13 - REGULATORY MATTERS 

Bancorp and its subsidiary the Hank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administercd by the 
federal banking agencics. Failure to meet minimuin capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly 
additional discretionary actions by rcgulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct matcrial effect on thc 
Company's and the Bank's financial statements. Undcr capital adequacy guidelines and the rcgulatory framework 
for prompt corroctivc action, the Company and the Rank must rncet specific capital guidelines that involvc 
quantitative measures of their asscts, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory 
accounting practiccs. Their capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgmcnts by the 
regulators about components, risk weightings and other faclors. 

Quantitative measures cstablished by regulation to cnsure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Ticr I capital (as detined in the 
regulations) to risk-wcightcd assets (as dei-incd), and of  Ticr 1 capital (as deiined) to average assets (as defined). 
Management believes, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, that the Company and the Bank inect all capital 
adequacy requirements to which they are subjcct. 



As of Decnnber 3 I ,  2006, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorizcd 
the Bank as well capitaliyed under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorizcd as 
well capitalized the Rank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as 
set forth in the table. The Company’s and the Rank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the 
table. 
Therc are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank‘s 
category. 

To Be Wcll 
Capitalized Under 

For Capital Prompt Correctivc 
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions 

As of December 3 1, 2006: 
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 

Consolidated 
Salisbury Rank and Trust Company 

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated 
Salisbury Bank and Trust Company 

Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) 
Consolidated 
Salisbury Bank and Trust Company 

As of December 3 1,2005: 
Total Capital (to Risk Wcighted Assets) 

Consolidated 
Salisbury Bank and Trust Company 

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated 
Salisbury Bank and Trust Company 

Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) 
Consol idated 
Salisbury Bank and Trust Company 

Amount 

$38,030 
37,295 

35,555 
34,785 

35,555 
34,785 

34,058 
34,492 

32,432 
3 1,732 

32,432 
3 1,732 

Amount - Ratio Amount Ratio 
(Dollar amounts in thousands) 

15.28% $19,914 - r8.0% N I A  
14.98 19,929 - S . 0  $24,9 I 1 ,10.0% 

14.28 9,957 14.0 NlA 
13.97 9,964 I >4.0 14,946 26.0 

8.43 16,X79 24.0 NIA 
8.26 16,848 - r4.0 21,060 35.0 

15.76 17,801 - >8.0 NIA 
15.53 I7,77 1 - r8.O 22,213 310.0 

14.58 8,900 - >4.0 Nlh  
14.29 8,885 - >4.0 13,328 - >6.0 

8.27 15,687 - >4.0 NIA 
8.1 1 15,649 - r4.0 19,562 - r5.0 

The dcclaration of cash dividends is dependent on a number of factors, including regulatory limitations, and the 
Company’s operating rcsults and financial condition. The stockholdcrs of Bancorp will be entitled to dividends only 
wlicn, and i f ,  declared by the Rancorp’s Board ol‘Directors out of funds legally available therefore. The declaration 
of futurc dividends will be subject to favorable operating results, financial conditions, tax considerations, and other 
factors. 

Under Connecticut law, the Bank may pay dividends only out of net profits. The Connecticut Ranking 
Commissioner’s approval is required for dividend payments which exceed the current year’s net profits and retained 
net profits from the preceding two years. As of Decembcr 31, 2006, the Bank may declare dividends to Bancorp in 
an amount not to exceed $1,797,009. 



NOTE 14 - DIRECTORS STOCK RETATNER PLAN 

At the 2001 annual meeting the shareholders of Bancorp voted to approve the “Directors Stock Retainer Plan of 
Salisbury Bancorp, Inc.” (thc “Plan”). This Plan provides non-ciiiployee directors of the Company with shares of 
restricted stock of‘ Bancorp as a component ol‘ their compcnsation for scrvices as dircctors. The inaximum number 
of shares of stock that may be issued pursuant to the Plan is 15,000. The first grant date undcr this Plan preceded 
the 2002 annual meeting of stockholders. Each director whose term of office begins with or continues after the date 
the Plan was approved by the stockholders is issued an “annual stock retainer” consisting of 120 shares of hlly 
vcsted restricted common stock of Bancorp. In 2006, 2005 and 2004, 840, 940 and 840 shares, respectively, were 
issued undcr the Plan and the related compcnsation expcnse ainounted to $3 1,920, $36,566 and $3 1,836, 
respectively. 

NOTE 15 - MERGER ANI) ACOUTSITIONS 

On Octobcr 3, 2006 the Bank entered into a Purchase and Assumption Agrccinent with New York Community 
Bank to acquire certain assets and liabilitics of a siiiall branch of New York Community Bank. Management 
expects the transaction to be completed in the second quarter of 2007. 

On September 10, 2004, Canaan National Bancorp, lnc. (”Canaan National”) merged (the “Merger”) with and into 
the Company. Under the te rm of thc Merger, tlie shareholders of Canaan National received a total of $6,020,163 in 
cash and 257,483 shares of Bancorp corninon stock in cxchangc for all shares of Canaan National Bancorp, Inc. 
stock. The valuc of the 257,483 shares issued was $10,698,418 and was determined based on the September 10, 
2004 closing market price of $41 3 5  of Baicorp’s corninon stock. 

The Mcrger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed have been recorded by the Company at their fair valucs at the consummation date. During thc 
appraisal process, an identifiable intangible asset of $1,191,279 was calculated and is being amortized to expense 
over a period of 12 years. Goodwill recorded totaled $7,151,421 and will be analyzed for iinpainnent on at least an 
annual basis. Financial statement amounts for Canaan National arc included in the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements bcginning on tlie acquisition date. A sunimary of net assets acquired is includcd in the 
supplcmental disclosures in the cash flow statement. 

The following (unaudited) pro forma consolidated results of operations have been prepared as if the acquisition of 
Canaan National had occurrcd at January 1,2004: 

Gross rcvenues 
Net income 
Net income per share 

Year Ended 
December 3 1,2004 

$25,291,875 
$ 4,870,000 

$2.89 

The pro forma information is presented for inlbrmational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the 
results of operations that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been consummated as of that time, 
nor is it intended to be a projection ofhture results. 
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NOTE I6 - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

The Company's asscts as of lkccmber 3 1 ,  2006 and 2005 include goodwill of $2,357,884 relating to the purchase 
of a branch oI' a bank in 2001 and $7,151,421 of additional goodwill from tho merger with Canaan National 
Bancorp, Inc. in 2004. Goodwill recognized in the 2004 merger i s  not deductible for tax purposes. 

The Company evaluatcd its goodwill as of December 3 1,2006 and 2005 and found no impairment. 

A summary of acquired amortizing intangible asscts is as follows: 

Corc dcposit intangible-branch purchase 

Core deposit intangible-Canaan National merger 

Total 

Corc deposit intangible-branch purchase 

As of December 3 1,2006 
Gross Nct 

Carrying Accumulated Carrying 
Amount Amortization Amount 

$ 888,606 9; 361,709 $ 526,897 

I ,  191,279 224.677 966,602 

$2.079,885 m . 3 8 6  $1.493,499 

As of December 3 1,2005 
Gross Net 

Carrying Accuinulated Carrying 
Amount Amortization Amount 

$ 888,606 $293,354 $ 595,252 

Core deposit intangible-Canaan National merger 1 ~I r) 1,279 128,816 1,062,463 

Total $2.079,885 $422.170 => 
Aggrcgate amortization expense wits $164,216, $164,416 and $101,109 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
Ainorti7ation is being calculated on a straight-line basis. 

Estimatcd amortization cxpense for each of the five years succeeding 2006 is as follows: 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

$ 164,216 
164,216 
164,216 
164,2 16 
164,216 

$ x 2 w  

NOTE 17 - RECLASSIFICATION 

Certain amounts in the prior years have been rcclassified to bo consistent with the current ycar's statement 
presentation. 

NOTE 18 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following condensed financial statements are for Salisbury Hancorp, Inc. (Parent Company Only) and should be 
read in conjunction with the Coiisolidated Financial Staterncnts of Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary. 
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SALISBURY BANCORP. INC. 

(Parent Company Only) 

BALANCE SHEETS 

December 3 1,2006 and 2005 

ASSETS 
Money market mutual funds 
Cash in Salisbury Bank and Trust Company 

lnvcstmcnt in subsidiary 
Other assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total asscts 

LTASTLITTES AND SHAREHOLDEKS’ EQUlTY 
Dividends payablc 

Total liabilities 
Total shareholders’ equity 

Total liabilitics and shareholders’ equity 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Years Ended December 3 I ,  2006.2005 and 2004 

Dividend income from subsidiary 
Taxable interest on sccurities 

Legal expense 
Supplies and printing 
Other cxpense 

Income belore income tax benefit and equity in undistributed 

Income tax benclit 
Income bcfore cquity in undistributcd (distributed) net 

Equity in undistributed (distributed) net incornc of subsidiary 

(distributed) net income of’ subsidiary 

income of subsidiary 

Net income 

2006 
$1,800,000 

34,435 
1.834,435 

9,984 
3,503 

3731 7 
5 1,004 

1,783,43 1 
( 5,469) 

1,788,900 
2,464,718 

$4:253b18 

2006 
$ l,199,Xz(I 

2,494 
1,202,375 

43,579,224 
5,449 

$44.787.068 

$ 437,887 
437,887 

44,349.18 1 
$44.7U+!u 

2005 
$1,780,000 

24.068 
1 .X04,068 

0 
1,632 

27,559 
29,191 

1,774,877 
( I  ,577) 

1,776,454 
2,784,887 

$4.561,341 

2005 
$ 1,119,724 

0 
1 ,I 19,724 

40,741,857 
1,577 

$41 363.158 

$ 420,835 
420,835 

41,442,323 
$41.863.158 

2004 
$ 7 3  10,000 

4.375 
7 3  14,375 

10,500 
2,042 

24,167 
36,709 

7,477,666 
(5,647) 

7,483,313 
(3,464,371) 
$4918.9_42 



SALISBURY BANCORP, INC. 

(Parent Company Only) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004 

2006 
Cash flows from opcrating activities: 

Net income $4,253,618 
Adjustmcnts to reconcile net income to net cash provided 

by opcrating activities: 
Equity in (undistributcd) distributcd net income of subsidiary (2,464,7 18) 
(Incrcase) decreasc in taxes rcccivable (3,892) 
Decrease in due from subsidiary 0 
Decrease in other assets 0 
Dccrcase in othcr liabilities 0 
Issuance of shares for Directors' fees 3 1,920 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,816,928 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Cash paid to Canaan National Bancorp, Inc. shareholders 0 

0 
Cash and cash equivalcnts acquired from Canaan National 

Brtncorp, Inc., nct of expenses paid of $309,419 

Nct cash used in investing activities 0 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Dividends paid (1,734,277) 

Net cash used in financing activities (1,734,277) 

Net increasc in cash and cash cquivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of' year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofycar 

82,65 1 
1,l 19,724 

$_1,202m 

Supplemental disclosure: 
Liability assumed in mcrger with Canaan National Bancorp, Inc. !$ 0 

2005 

$4,561,341 

(2,784,887) 
4,070 

0 
29,837 

36,566 

1,843,250 

(3,677) 

0 

0 

0 

( 1,666,046) 

(1,666,046) 

177,204 
942,520 

$1,119:724 

% 0 

2004 

$4,018,942 

3,464,37 1 
(5,647) 
33,000 

189,807 
(78,323) 
3 1,836 

7,653,986 

(6,020,163) 

222,868 

(5,797,295) 

(1.41 5,074) 

(1,415,074) 

441,617 
500,903 

$942.520 

$ 82,000 



NOTE 19 - QUARTERLY RESIJLTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) 

Summarized quartcrly financial data for 2006 and 2005 follows: 

(In thousands, except earnings per share) 

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 
2006 Ouarters Ended 

Interest and dividend income 
Interest expense 

Benefit for loan losses 
Other incoine 
Othcr expensc 

Income tax expensc 

Net interest and dividend incoine 

Tncome bcfore income taxes 

Net income 

$5,460 
2,161 
3,293 

0 
1,026 
2,x37 
1,482 

335 
$u42 

$5,789 
2.531 
3,258 

0 
1,001 

1,267 
26 1 

- %OB 

$6,111 $6,369 
2,7543JNJ 
3,351 3,362 

0 (87) 
1,213 1,344 

1,469 1,478 
3 09 537 - -  

- $l,l!a &941 

L.68  La gB Earnings pcr common sharc 

( T n  thousands, except carnings per share) 
2005 Ouarters Endcd 

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 

Interest and dividend income 
Intercst expensc 

Provision (benuiit) for loan losses 
Other income 
Other expense 

Income tax expcnse 

Net interest and dividend incoinc 

Income botore incornc taxcs 

Net income 

Earnings per common sharc 

$5,034 
1,645 
3,389 

90 
1,389 
3,026 
1,662 

333 
$1.329. 

$5,069 
1,144 
3,325 

90 
1,226 
2.965 
1,496 

1 EX 
$1.308 

$5,272 
1,906 
3,366 

90 
1,275 
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MARKET /.’OR REGlSTRANT’S COMMON EOUITY 
RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITTES 

(a) Market Injormation 

Thc Company’s common stock is tradcd on Thc American Stock Exchange undcr the symbol “SAL”. 
following table prescnts the high and low sales prices of thc Company’s common stock. 

The 

2006 Ouartms 2005 Ouartws 
4g 3z Yl 1” 4Lh 3yd 2”“ lP‘ 

Rangc of Stock prices: 
High $39.25 $39.70 $39.50 $38.25 $40.20 $40.70 $40.80 $43.50 
Low $37.50 $37.50 $35.50 $36.50 $37.90 $35.60 $36.50 $39.00 

(E) Holders 

‘There wcre approximately 733 holders of record of the common stock of the Company as of March 9, 2007. This number 
includcs brokerage firms and other financial institutions which hold stock in their namc, but which is actually owned by third 
parties. 

(c) Dividends 

Dividends are currently declared four times a ycar, and the Company expects to follow such practices in the future. During the 
ycar 2006, the Company declared a cash dividend each quarter of$.26 per shasc. Dividends for the year 2006 totaled $1.04 per 
share which compared to tolal dividends of $1.00 that were declared in the ycar 2005. At their February 28, 2007 meeting, thc 
Directors or the Company declarcd a cash dividcnd o f  $.26 pcr share for thc first quartcr of 2007. The dividend will he paid on 
April 30,2007 to shareholders of record as of March 30, 2007. Paymcnts of all dividends are dependent upon the condition and 
carnings of thc Company. The Company’s ability to pay dividends is limited by tlic prudent banking principles applicablc to all 
bank holding coinpanics and hy the provisions of Connccticut Corporate law, which provide that no distribution may be made by 
a company ir, after giving it effect: (1) the company would not be ablc to pay its dcbts as they bccome due in the usual coursc o f  
business or ( 2 )  thc company’s total assets would be less th,m the sum of its total liabilitics plus amounts needed to satisfy any 
prcfcrred stock rights. The following table presents cash dividends declared pcr share for the last two years: 

2006 Quarters 2005 Ouurters 
4& 3-“ 2& P‘ 4~ 3’_d 2”’ 1” 

Cash dividcnds 
declarcd $0.26 $0.26 $0.26 $0.26 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 

Tlic dividends paid to shareholders of the Company arc I‘unded primarily from dividends reccived by the Company 
from the Bank. Rcfcrence should be made to Note I3  of thc Consolidated Financial Statcnients for a description o T  
restrictions on the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to the Company. 

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
ANNUAL REPORT TRANSFER AG ENT-REGISTRAR 

A copy of the Company’s Annual Report on Form IO-K For sharcholder inquirics concerning dividend chccks, 
tor 2006, including thc linancial statcment and thc transferring ownership, address changes or lost or 
financial staterncnl schedules, may be obtained without stolen stock ccrlificates, plcase coritact our transfer 
chargc upon written rcyuest to: agent: 

John F. Foley Registrar and Transfer Company 
Chicl‘Financial Officcr, Treasurer & Sccretary 10 Commcrce Drive 

Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. Cranford, New Jersey 070 16 
5 Bissell Street, PO Box 1868, Lakevillc, CT 06039 1-800-368-5948 

STOCK SYMBOL: “SAL” INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
Salisbury Bancorp, Inc.’s common stock is traded under 
lhe symbol “SAL” on the American Stock Exchangc. 

Shatswell, MacLeod & Company, P.C. 
83 Pine Street 

West Peabody, Massachusetts 01960-3635 



Stock Price Performance Graph 
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Set forth below is a line graph with an explanatory table comparing the yearly 
percentage change in the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s Common 
Stock, based on the market price of the Company’s Common Stock and assuming 
reinvestment of dividends, with the total return of the AMEX Major Market Index and 
the SNL Bank Index for Banks with total assets more than $250 million and less than 
$500 million. The calculation of total cumulative return assumes a $100 investment in 
the Company’s Common Stock and each of the other indices on December 3 I , 200 I .  

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN 
AMONG SALISBURY BANCORP, INC,, THE AMEX MAJOR MARKET INDEX 

AND THE SNL $250M-$500M BANK INDEX 
pppp-pp--- 
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As of 
hdex 12/31/01 12131102 12131103 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 
Salisbury Bancorp, Inc. 100.00 126.96 184.34 21 1.08 189.20 192.39 
AMEX Major Market Index 100.00 87.77 108.87 119.80 115.78 137.82 
SNL Bank $250M-$500M 100.00 128.95 186.31 21 1.46 224.51 234.58 

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FfNANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

During the two (2) most recent fiscal ycars, the Company and the Bank have had no changes in or disagrccments 
with its independent accountants on accounting and financial disclosure matters. 
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